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Managers’ Report

The Board of Managers (the "Board™) present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2016 ("2016%,

Development of the business

Mhisys Newco 2 S art (the “Company’) is a limited liability company domiciled in f.uxembourg. The address of
its registered office 1s 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

The Company, together wilh its subsidianes ("Misys” or “the Group"), was formed by the combination of two
separate acquisiions by Vista Equily Partners in 2012,

The Group's prncipal achivities are the development, management and licensing of a variety of sofiware
products and selutions to customers i the financial services industry. The Group operates globally, including
paitnering with other companies to sell and distrbute Misys products and solutions

Dynng 2016, the Group continued o provide mission-critical software to its customers, with those products
being deeply embedded n customers’ operations The financial services market continued to evoive
throughout 2018, with cngoing pressure on banks to belter manage enterprise-wide nsk, to introduce new
growth areas and to comply with requlatory requirements

Performance during the year

2016 was a strong year for the Group, with a combination of excellent sales execution and disciplined cost
contro! resultng In a retum to revenue and profit growth. Continued Investment «n research and davelopment
(‘R&D7) aclivibes has allowed the Group to develop and launch z full suite of integrated products, crealing
value-added solutions for customers

Market confidence In the Group's offerings 1s reflected In the 25 new-name customers secured in 2016,
coupled with good volume and significant growth of up-sell and cross-sell licence sales to the Group's existing
customer base Licence revenue mcraased by 23% to $253.1m from $205 4m in 2015 and included the largest
hcence deals in the Group's history

Disciplned cost management and the benefits from the restructuring programme announced In May 2015 are
reflected m the Adjusted EBITDAC margin improvament to 36 2%, from 33 6% in 2015. Cost management
remans a focus area, balanced with targeted investment to set the Group up for fong-term success and the
benefits of these actions are refiacted in the 2016 results.

Throughout 2018, the Group continued 1o focus on delivering growth and improving operating margins through
nvesting in preduct development, sales and marketing, and talent The Board beheves that the Group will
remain competitive within the markets it operates in, due to the quality, breadth 2nd depth of its producls, as
well s its compseblive positioming.

Research and Development Activity

During the year, R&D gross expenditure before capitalisation decreased to $109.5m compared to $122 2m in
the prior year, largely due to the consolidation of efforts into lower cost tocatlons and the impact of foreign
exchange movements, whilst improved efliciency of caplunng all capltalisable activities has resulted in $47 2m
being capitalised, compared with $30.9m i the year anded 31 May 2015 The Group continued to benefit from
active managementi of R&D locations, along with benefithng from lower associated costs.
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A successful R&D agenda remains a strategic pnonty of the Group The markots in which the Group operates
are comgplex, requiring an effective R&D strategy to support and maintain the compettive advantage which the
Group enjoys. The Group remains commiifed to the continvous development of a portfolio of market relevant
products which can be delivered on an integrated platiorm. This agenda will continue into the next financial
year, Ongoing investment in new technology and functionalty has, and will continue to, enable the Group tfo
maintam and strenglhen its market-leading position and develop its Cloud-based offering to the markel

Throughout 2016, the Group has continued to invest m a Group-wide Prodyct Strategy funchion, which 1s
tasked with the coordmation of long-term product strategy for all the markets in which it operates, 10 order to
identfy and accelerate tha development of integration opportunities between products for the bengfit of its
customers. Integration and componenhsation of the Group's solutions, backed up by a leading FusionFabric
technology platform, benefils cusiomers of multiple of the Group's products through increased transparency,
reduced implementation costs, more effective decislion-making and more efficient operations.

The Group has created new products and integrated sofutions while extending the functionality of existing
products The first FusionCapital components and solutions based on the new FusignFabnc architeclure were
released this yesr These provide front and back-office capabililles including pricing, curve management,
position-keeping, a trade reposiory, collateral management and post-trade processing. FusionBanking
Essence has been extended to mest the requirements of new customers in Eurapa and Asia and the Digital
Channels offering has been productised to simplify and eccelerate customer implementations and upgrades.
The Corporate Channels offering has been exlended to cover lending and treasury and deliver an integrated,
cross-product experience to banks’ corporate customers, The Group continues to improve the qualily, secunty,
usability and performance of all its solutions. Finaily. the Group has launched a new programme,
FusionReactor, to stimulate and drive innovation. The programme fosters creative grass roots innovation, and
has generated a number of new ideas, two of which, Crowd Funding and machine learning for trade caplure,
have been adopted and are now fully funded and under development.

Key Performance Indicators ("KPis™)

The Group's KPI results for the year were as follows’

Year ended Year ended

31 May 31 May increase /

2016 2015 {decrease)
Revenue ($m) 00 2 8805 2%
Licence Fees {$m) 253.1 2054 23%
Adjusled EBITDAC! [$m) 326 2 296 7 10%
Research and development expanditure? (Sm) 1085 122.2 {10%)
Net cash flow generated from operations ($m) 3058 2017 5%
Met debf® (m) 1,764 0 1,757.2 0%
4,683 4,819 1%

Headgcount - year end
' Anjusted Eamings belore Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amorusation less the amounts capualised in respect of mtematly
developed software and other adjustments See page S for a reconcthation of operating profit to this adusted measure
? Excluding discretionary employee refated costs
? Borrowings, excluding Prefetred Equity Certificalus, less cash and cash equivalents and restricied cash

Commentary on the Group's KPIs is provided as part of the Financial Review balow
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Financial Review

Resulls

Revenue mcreased by 2% from $880 5m in 2015 to $900.2m 1n 2016 largely due to the increase in Licence
Fees ("LF") revenue This revenue growth was partiaily offset by the impact of foreign exchange movements
on reporied revenues, in parhcular the strengthening of the US Dollar against the Eurg and Pound Steriing
duning the year On a constant-cumrency basis, calculated by applying current year foreign exchange rates lo
prior year rasults, revenue increased by approximately 8% over the prior year

A 23% growth n LF 1o $253.1m, compared to $205 4m 1n 2015, was largely due to strong execution, with the
Group signing 25 new name customers and a favourable mix of new-name, cross-seli and up-sell deals which
have been 2 strategic and active focus of the Group

The Board considers LF 1o be a KPl because it 15 2 measure of new business and drives future Maintenance
fees and, in many cases, new Professional Services (*PS") revenue. On a constanl-currency basis, LF
increased by $57.3m or 28% over the prior year

Maintenance fees decreased by 3% from $474 5m to $458 Sm in 2016 due lo the impact of foreign exchange
movements of key currencias In refation the US Dollar On a consiant currency basis, Mamntenance fees
wncreased by 3% benefittng from new hcences signed in 2015, and annual price increases in 2016. Customer
retentton has remained high at 94% coniributing to the certainty of the Group's recurng revenue

PS revenue decreased by $10.0m to $154.4m from $164.4m in the prior year, largely due to the impact of
foreign exchange but also due to delays In achieving project milestones The Group remains focused on
operational impravemaents i this business and have recently made leadarship changes to tighten the linkage
hetweon PS and sales teams and accelerale progress

Agjusted EBITDAC of 5326 2m, an increase of 10% from $296 7m in 2045, refiects the growth in revenue and
discipined cost control. Adjusted EBITDAC is the key measure of performance used by management, and
also forms part of the financial covenant under the Group's loan facilliies. A reconcihiation between Adjusted
EBITDAC and operating profit as per the consolidated financial statements Is shown on page 5 of this report

R&D expenditure decreased to $109.5m from $122.2m in 2015, largsly dus to the consohdstion of
development centres of excellence in cost effectiva locations, and the impact of forelgn exchange.

The Group has conducted an annual impairment assessment on the carrying value of goodwill, based on the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit ("GGU") to which geodwill has been allocated. The results of
these reviews are disclosed in note & to these financial statements On an aggregated basis, the Group has e
significant surplus on the camrying values of its CGUs. However, on an individua) basis an impawment charge
of $26 7m has been recorded in 2016 against the carrying value of goodwill allocated to the Fusioninves! CGU
and 1s included in operaling expenses in the consolidated income statement Performance of this CGU during
the year did nol meel the expectations of management, and together with lower than anticipated forecast
revenues and having considered reasonable sensitivities, the Managers have deemed it appropriate to record
this impairment charge in the consolldated income statement

The Group reporied cperating profit of 3155 Im compared to $56 3m n 2015, largely due to a decrease in
operating expenses of $79 1m to §745 1m from $824 2m In the prior year. 2016 operating profit (s inclusive of
$26 7m goodwill imparrment in relation to the Fusioninvest CGU, whilst the year ending 31 May 2015 was
inclusive of 3 $80.0m goodwill impairment in relation to the FusionRisk CGU,

Operating profit includes non-recurring charges of $15.5m (2015 $23 5m) conslsting of $0.8m {2015 $1.1m)
of costs related to the acquisition of Custom Credit Systems, LP ("CCS"), and restructuring charges of
$14.7m (2015, $22.4m) During the year, the Group continued cosl-reduction programmes impacting a number
of functions and recorded restructurng charges, mamly related to severance costs In addition, sofiware
development costs capitalised during the year increased to $47.2m from $30.8m net of a $3.3m wnite off in the
prier year, as the Group improved the efficency of capturing all capitalisable activiues
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The Group mncurred net finance costs of $357.9m, an increase of 6% from $337 3m in the pdor vear This
ncrease was a rasult of higher interest on Preferred Equity Certificates ("PECs”) as a result of compounding
interest charged of $1986.9m (2015 $174.4m) which is not cash-seitled. Finance costs also comprise $141.4m
(2015" $144 5m) of interest on bank Ioans and facilites which are cash-settled as they hecome due

The Group recorded a tax credhl of $47.9m (2015: $30 2m charge) largely due to deferred tax credits of
$100 2m (2015 $37.6m) offset by current taxation charges of $52.3m (2015: $67.8m) The deferred tax credits
relale to the recognihon of deferred tax assets of $72.9m on tax losses that are recoverable against future
profits, $31.5m related to acquired intangible assets and, (54 2m) of other deductible temporary differences.

Financial position

Non-current assets of $2.523.3m {2015 $2,613.5m} primarily comprise goodwif of $1.,587.6m (2015.
$1.614 1m) and other intangible assets of $771 4m {2015 $918.8m) A further $29.8m (2015 $28.7m)
compnse langible fixed assets, predorinantly office furmishings and information technology equipment

Non-current trade and other receivables of $41 7m (2015° $31 6m) compnse credits on qualitfied R&D
expenditure, revenue from customers which contractually cannot be billed within 12 months of the reporting
dale, and deposits outstanding in relation fo offices occupted by staff of the Group

Current assets of $440.7m (2015: $398.6m) largely compnse biiled and unbilied receivables of $337 0m (2015.
$294.0m) and cash balances of $41 Tm (2015 $40.3m)

Net deferred tax liabiities of $35 1m at 31 May 2016 {2015. $138.8m) primanly relate to timing differences on
other intangible assets acquired by way of business combinations, and the recognition of prior year fosses
where it is now sufficiently probable that there will be future profits in the respechive tax junsdicton fo utilise the
asset.

Other Gabiiies compnse trade and other payables of $154.6m (2015 $191 4m) and deferred ncome of
$247.9m (2015: 253 7m). Deferred income is primanly derived from the annual maintenance and support
which the Group provides to customers and bills in advance, subsequently recognised over the course of the
sarvice period, and has decreased due to movements in foreign exchange

Net debt

Net debt Is defined as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and cash equivalents and restncted cash The
Group excludes PECs from Net debt for consistency with the financial covenants under #ts banking facilibes.
Net debt increased by $6 8m in the year to $1,764 Om compared to $1.757.2m in 2015, primanly as a result of
the amortisation of capitalised loan amangement fees and a $2 9m Increase in the US Deliar value of the Euro
184.4m term loan under the First Lien credil facilily due to the strengthening of the Euro againsl the US Dollar.
This increass was partially offset by the mandatory repayment of $12 8m of First Lien loans (2015: $13.1m).

Cash flow

Net cash flow generated from operations In the year was $305.8m compared to $291.7m in 2015 The
mcrease is largely due lo the higher operating profit generated in 2016 offset by the consumption of warking
capital, driven by the timing of licence deals signed during the year.

Interest paid for the year increased to $177 3m durlng 2016 compared with $145 1m n the previous year
primanly due to the early repayment of $25 Om of accrued interest on the Group’s First and Second Lien loans
as agreed wilh the Group’s lenders as a means of managing closing cash balances Interesi repayments are
largely stable year-on-year for the Groups secured term loans with some impact from the uss of short-term
facilitiey
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The Group paid $54.0m (2015: $72 Sm} of corporation tax during the year of which $15 Sm {2015 $17 9m)
retated to withholding tax levied on payments made ta the Group enlities whare the tax could not be recovered
through the local corporate tax regime, due either to underlying tax fosses, or other restrichons under local tax
law The Group 15 within the scope of corparation tax in the jurisdiclions it 15 based in and settles taxes in
thosse locatons to the extent that there are taxable profits i the country which are not offset by existing tax
losses The principal corporation tax paird was $14,0m (2015, $28 5m} in the United States where remaming
tax losses were utiisad in the year to 31 May 2016,

The Group used $60 3m of cash Jor investing activittes (2015: $89.5m) largely comprising $47 2m (2015
$34 2m) expenditure incurred on intemally developed software, and the net cash outflow of $11.6m (2015
$6 5m) for the purchase of feasehold improvements, computer equipment and cther capital equipment

Net cash of $12.8m (2015 $13.1m) was used in financing activities, being the mandatory repayment of the

First Lien credit facitty referred to in Note 18 with the variance in repayments being caused by the
strangthening of the US Dollar over the Euro on averaga over the course of the year

Reconciliation between Operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Below 1s a reconcihation between Operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC.

Year Year

ended endad

31 May 31 May

all figures in § mlions 2016 2015
Operating profit 155.1 563

Add back

Non-recurfing charges’ 15.5 235
Goodwill impalrment 26.7 80.0
Amortisation of othar intangble assels 195.8 2102
Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment 0.2 a8
Net other foreign exchange gain (30.8) (25.7)
investor management fees 2.7 14
Gam on embedded derivatives (1.8) (79)
Adjusted EBITDA 373.4 3278
Capitalised software development costs {47.2) (30 9)
Adjusted EBITDAC 326.2 286.7

"Non-recurnng charges conskst of acquistion and intagrabion costs, and «estructuring retated charges,
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Graup 1s conlinuing to executs its vision o transform the global financial services industry by making
financial institutions more resthent, more efficient and more competitive. The Group amms to realise its vision by
building world ciass products and solutions, ensunng continued focus on customer success and satisfaction,
rurtunng a high performance workplace and delivening sustainable financial performance Execulive
management actively track and manage a variely of risks that impact these strategic imperatives.

The key nsks and associated mitigation activities befow do not comprise all the risks associated with the
Group, and thay are not sel oul in any order of priority Additional risks not presently known to management, or
currently deamad to be less matena)l, may also have an adverse effect on the business,
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Changing macro-economic conditions and impact on customer demand and deal cycles

The global financial services software indusiry 1s tughly competitive and can be adversely tmpacied by
changing macro-economic factors such as sovereign indebtedness, economic slowdowns, currency
devaluations, governmental budgetary constrants and political instabitily resulting in change in demand of
certain products, inability to service certain markets and an increase In deal cycles.

The impact of macro-economic factors on the Group 1s somewhal limiled dus {o a high recurring revenue base
(over 50% of the Group's revenue s recuiring 0 nature) from a geographically diversified customer base {over
2.000 customers in 130 countries) The Group has low levels of revenue concentrabion with the top 10
customers coninbuting 16% of revenues for the year However, long term changes in macro-economic and
poliical condttions globally or in key regions could adversely impact the Group's resuits

Recently, the United Kingdom’s vote fo exit the European Union (“EU") has intreased the uncertamty in the
markets While it is still early to comment on the nature and extent of the impact this may have on the Group
and its customers, beyond the initial impact of foreign exchange rate movements, it is important to note that
any significant changes to the Group’s operations are unlikely The Group will continue to consider changes
that are in the best interests of its customers and investors.

Technology investments in financial services software are usually significant in value and the Group has to
compete with various global, regional and local software service providers to win business. In addition, deal
cycles are usually lengthy due to formafised vendor diigence and procurement processes i the financial
services industry. This, combined with changing customer requrements and inconsistent sales execution, can
create difficulties in forecasting the gquantum and timing of new licence sales

The Group manages thase risks by employing sales teams and sales pariners that are compensated based on
performance, geagraphically based n key markets supported by product spacialists where needed The sales
teams are required to develop and maintain healthy sales pipetines to allow far histoncat deal win rates and
unpredictability in the bming of closing deals While ssles pipeline forecasts are subject to regular bustness
reviews and adjusted for changes in sales dynamcs, forecast assumptions of pipeline ‘conversion rates’ and
‘win rates’ can be impacted by factors such as deal sizes, market conditions, change in customer behaviour,
product maturity and sales performance resuling n increased unpredictabiity of new licence sales
performance

Risks related to revenue recognition

The Group sells complex solutions and products to customers and needs to exercise reasonable judgements
on the quantum and limmg of revenue recognition. This can be particularty challenging for large and complex
contracts with mulliple commilments Tha Group manages these dsks by using a standard commercial policy
and ensuring that contractual terms and canditons are approved by the appropriate personnst within the
business. In addition the Group has a dedicated finange and accounting team that adhere to revenue and
accounting policies, which are reviewed at least annually, lo ensure that contracts are accounted on the basis
of International Financial Reparting Standards ("IFRS") and generally accepted accounting principles on a
consistent basis.

A substantial porion of the Group's safes activity has histonically been completed in the latter part of the
financiat year and a shortfall in revenue can have a significant Impact on profitabilty due to the relatively fixed
nature of the Group's cost base in the short to medium term

Market predictions and risks related to product delivery

In a globat and rapidly changing market, the Group needs to respond to the changing needs of customers and
regulators by investing n high qualily products and solutions that meet their requirements and are dehivared on
time Over tme the Group has bullt a software portfolio that has grown to become the broadest range of
solutions focused on the financial services industry.
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The increased demand for Digital Channels solutions, data analybics, Cloud, nsk management and reporting
lools plus the introduclion of regulations such as Dodd-Frank, FRTB and EMIR provides the Group
opportunibies to sell new solulions to existing and new customess. This requires the Group to track and predict
global and regional market requirements, trends and changes in regulations and direct the R&D investment in
the right solutions to ensure maximum retumn on nvastment.

While the Group continues to make sigmficant investment in #s products with approximately 15% (2015 16%)
of operationat costs in the current year invesied in R&D, It 15 possible that some mvestments might not deliver
anticipated returns wittun expected tmeframes, due lo changes in market conditions, inhsrent uncertaintles in
accurately predicting requiremments for a global market or the failure to defiver quality products on tme

The Group manages the risks related to ongoing product investments and product development through
vanous means mncluding the use of agile product development methodologes, preduct investment reviews,
hiring expenenced product managers and business analysts who understand various marke! requirements,
and the use of customer advisory boards which bring together key chent stzkeholders to discuss and validate
the top prionties for Misys product roadmaps Over 45% of the Group's staff 1s dedicated to R&D, and the
Group maintains a strong focus on engineering excellence, impiementing best practice product development
methodologies, lools and processes, and ndependent product testing and quality assurance processes
However, the Group could be adversely mpacted oy unforeseen delays i product development due to
changing requirements, mcreased complexily and coding or manufacluring errors, despite lesting prior to
release

The Group also invests 1n acquiring complementary technology as evidenced by the previous acquisitions of

IND and CCS. Acquisittons are mherently risky requiring strong due ddigence, analysis and integration

processes to ensure projected benefitls and synergies are realised. The Group uses dedicated and

experienced leadership teams with significant expenence n corporate devetopment and employs appropriate

due diligence processes when identfying acquisition tangets, While the Group has a track record and

significant expenence of Integrating acguired businesses, # may fall to 1dentify all shortcomings or habliibgs -
refated to acauisitions or fail to realise all anticipated benefits and synergles

Risks related to project implementations and customer support

To ensure thai customers maxiymse their relurn on investment, the Group's products usually need to be
supported by timely implementations, integration with existing customer systems and afier-sates support
services, In general, system implementations, migrations and integrations can be impacted by unforeseen
challenges w dehvenng solutions on time and to budget These risks can also have an adverse effect on the
timing of revenue recognition

The Group manages these risks by the use of services staff and managers with deep domain expertise,
meodular, repeatable and predictable project delivery models and project reportingfforecastng processes. The
Group uses service delivery canires that are co-located with development teams to continuously refine and
improve implementations However, due to the length and complexity of some implemeniations, and the
ongolng evolution of product cycles, the Group may face unforeseen 1ssues with services delivenes that can
have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction and profitability. The Group usually invests in services
capabilties in advance of projected new licence sales, and an unforesean decline in sales performance can
have an adverse impact on services profitability

Tha Group has increasingly used, and will cortinue to use, the services of partners in order to access new
markels, broker deals and provide full implementation services to customers This approach to markel enables
the Group to scale its sales orgarisation quickly to reflect specific market fluctuations, however can at tmes
add complexity to contractual arrangements whereby an additional party, being the partper, is involved and
obligated to perform key activities
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Customers can choose from standard support or speCialised premium support packages based on thelr
requirements. Many support agreements include service level agreements that the Group needs to comply
with. The Group uses frained customer suppor staff that has deep domain expertisc deploysd n multipte
locations globally to ensure continuous avaliabdity of appropriate support levels The Group also uses a
dedicated customer support portal to monitar support queries. However, il is possible that the Group may not
comply with support service level agreements which could have an adverse impact on customer satisfacton,
profitability and customer retention,

Talent management, performance management and empioyee retention risks

The Group considers its people to be its most important asset and rehes on the ¢continuad service of key shaff
at various levels within the organisaton to succeed The Group's talent management systems are used lo
support ongoing identification, development, fraining and retention of talent and implementaton of traimng
pragrammes to ensure staff skills remain relevant and current Regular benchmarking of compensation and
benefits across kay markels 1s conducted to ensure salanes remain compelitive,

in addition, a strong recruitment and talent acguistion process is in place to ensure high potentiat talent is
introduced to the Group where needed However, the Group could be adversely impacied by the loss of key
tatenl and il ts possible that such losses, f nol managed, can be disruptive to the business

The Group uses performance management systems fo ensure individual and team goatls are aligned to
comporate objectives Performance management aciions may require workforce reslrucluring that could be
potentially disruptive to the business, and couid be accompamed by increased restructunng costs and
temporary reducton in productivity

Liquidity, debt, financial control and foreign exchange risks

The Group aims to achieve outstanding financial performance to ensure sustainable avallabitty of capital and
liquidity to allow further Investments in people, products and services, and appropriate management of the
Group's debt and hquidity position. In addition, the Group carries a significant amount of debt with associated
interest, rapaymant and covanant complance obligations. This maeans the Group neads to focus on strong
financtal and cash control, budgeting and reliability of financial forecasts The Group has a dedicated finance
and treasury team that assists management In operating key financial controls over budgets, forecasts and
cash flow optimusation Any unforeseen reduchions in revenue or increase in costs or liabihties, espscially
around seasonal periods of reduced liquidity, may have an adverse impact on the Group's financal
performance and working capital position

The Group has operations in around 50 countnies and its customers operate in over 130 counines around the
world While the Group’s financial performance is measured in US Dollar, a significant amount of the Group's
cash flows are denominated in other currencies particularly Euro, Pound Sterting, indien Rupee, Philippine
Peso, and Australian Dollar based on where sigmficant business is conducted around the world. Any
significant variations in forelgn exchange rates against the US Dollar can have an impact on key financial
performance mdicators including revenue. The Group operates a hedging strategy to protect a significant
portion of anticlpated net cash flows In key foreign currencies using forward currency contracts However,
long-term variations in foreign exchange rates of key currencies could adversely impact the Group's
profilabiity



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Managers’ Report for the yvear ended 31 May 2016

Security and intetleciual property risks

The Group 1s a provider of financial senvices software and has to ensure appropriate secunly of its Information
Technology (*IT") infrastructure, products and intellectual property, The Group invests a great deal of time and
effort in protacting its IT infrastructure and data, including any sensitive data held The Group's hosting and
Cioud offerings go through external security reviews and product secunty end vulnerability testng is a part of
the sofiware developmeni Wfecycle. Customers are also Increasingly demanding that products contam
approprate securty measures, even If they are not hosted on the Group's IT infrastructure High profile
secunty breaches al other companies have increased over hime due to ncreasingly sophisticated cyber-
attacks A highly sophisticaled attack on the Group's infrastructure or products mstalied in a customers
environment could result in the loss of sensitive information or intellectual property, or damage to customers’
business or regulatory obhigations, and this could have an adverse impact on the Group’s competiiveness and
profitability

In addition, the Group’s ongoing developrnent efforts result in the creation of intellectuat property ("IP*) such as
copyrights, trademarks and patents The Group also embeds third party software within its product solutions to
customers Whils patenting and other forms of IP protaction are utifised to protect the Group's iP, it is possible
that these processes may not be sufficient to prevent IP theft and could resull in loss of compettive advaniage
In additton, Ihe Group may face claims from other compames, including patent trolls, claming infringement or
other msuse of IP nighis. Responding to such clams, regardless of validity, can be time-consuming and
expensive and could require the Group fo cease selling or releasing certain products.

Business continuity and disaster recovery risks

The Group has over 4,600 employees In around 50 locations, including a significant presence in Asia, Europe
and the Amencas. Due to the global nature of the Group's business, a significant natural or man-made
disaster, poltical changas, acts of terrorism, restnctions in travel or the movement of people or capital could
have an ympaci on the Group's abily lo continue to provide sufficient services to customers or release
products on lime. While the Group has resilience bullt into ifs operations with data backups processes, cloud-
based systems and remots working and has successful frack record of managing business continuity incidents
across muitiple locations, the Group's operations could be impacted by major disasters in key sites or
countrigs,

Legal, regulatory and litigatton risks

The Group operates globally and 1s subjeci to varous regulations and taws i each country including health
and safety rules, data protectian regulations, employment laws, tax regulations, economic sanctions and the
UK Bribery Act The Group employs dedicated internal regional legal teams supported by legal advisors and
experiencad business staff

The Group's global operations, particularly in emerging economies, increase the risk of inappropriate business
condugt The Group manages this risk through a prescenbed code of conduct, anonymous whistle-blower sites,
ant-bribery training o relevant staff and regular monitoring of customer facing staff and partners. While
complisnce with ali significant iaws and regulations i1s momtored by the regronal legal teams thare remains a
risk 1thal the Group may not be comphant with 2il applicable laws and requiations in every junsdiction

In addition, from time lo time the Group has been subject to libigation claims from former employees,
cuslomers and business partners. While the Group has appropriate process to manage and account for known
liigation {none of which i1s currently considered 1o be material lo the Group's results and financial position), any
new and significant litigation 1 the future could have an adverse impact on financial performance.
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Managers’ Report for the year ended 31 May 2016

Managers

The Managers of the Company who were in office dunng the year and up to the date of signing the
consolidated financial statemanis are

Donald Park
Qlivier Hamou
Elvin Montes

Events after the raporting date

As disclosad in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no significant events have occurred since the
reporting date

Geing concern

The Managers have rewiewed the Group's forecasts and assumphons relevant In determming the
appropriatenass of the going concern basis and, at the time of approving these consolidated financial
statements, have s reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have access o adequate
financial resources to continue in oparational existence for the foreseeable future. While assessing going
concern assumption the Managers noted that the Group has complied with covenant terms smnce ther
meepttion in May 2012 and betieve that it will continug to comply with covenant terms in the foreseeabte future.
They therefore continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, as further discussed in notes to the consolidated financtal statements

Subsidiary companies

The Group conducts its activities through subsidiary companies across the world. A list of all subsidiarias Is
shown in note 30 o the consoldated financial statements.

Finangial Instruments

The financial nsk management objectives and policies of the Group are sel out in note 26 to the consolidated
financral statements.

Exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee
The Managers of the Company have decided to apply for exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee for some

of its eligible subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2018, as permitted by EU directive. A list of subsidianes
applying for the audit exemplion under parent guarantee s shown in nate 32 to the consohdated financiat

statemeants,

£]vin Montes
Manager
18 /0% A( §
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Andit report

To the Shaieholder of
Misys Newceo 2 S.ar.l.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited 1he accompanying consolidated financial statements of Misys Newceo 2 S.ar.l. and 1ts
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial positiot as at 31 May 2016, and
the consolidated statement of income, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes
in equily and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Board of Managers’ responsibihity for the consolidated finaneial statements

The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such wmternal control as the Beard of Managers determines is pecessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financizl statements that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the “Rémnseur dentreprises agréé”

Our responsibilily 15 to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for
Luxemboury by the “Commission de Swveillance du Secteur Financier” Those standards requure that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance
about whether the consohdated financial statements are free from matenal misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated finanemal statements. The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
' Réwiseur d’entreprises agréé” including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated finanaial statements, whether due to frand or error. In making those risk assessmeats,
the “Réviseur d'entrepnses agréé” considers mternal control relevant to the enhty’s preparation and
fawr presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circuinstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the cntity’s internal control An gudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accountng
policics nsed and the reasonahleness of accounting estunates made by the Board of Managers, as well
us evalvating the overall presentation of the consohdated financial statements.

We helieve that the audit evidenee we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

D [T e e s s [ —

PricewaterhayseCoaper 5, Socidté cgopdrative 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, 8.8 1443, L1014 Luembourg
T 352 4998481 F- +352 494848 2900, www pwelu

Cahinat de réuision agréé Expevt-comptable (autor waton gousernementale n°10028256)
R.C.S Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25484518
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QOpinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and faix view of the financial position
of Migys Newco 2 S.Arl and us subsidiaries as at 33 May 2016, aed of theit performance and cash
flows for the year then ended 1 accordance with lniernational Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Enropean Union.

Report op other legal and regulatory requirements
The Managers’ report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Managers, 15 consistent with the

consolidated financial slatemepts

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Seciété coopérative Luxembourg, 28 July 2016
Representyd by

Laarence Demelenne
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Misys Newco 2 8.ar.l.
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 May 2016

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures i § mithons Note 2016 2015
Revenue 1 8002 880.5
Operalinggegpenses 2 {7451) {824.2)
Operating profit 155 1 563
Fmance costs 3 (358.8) (338.1)
Finance income 3 09 0.8
Net finance costs (357.9) (337.3)
Loss before taxation (202.8) (281 0)
Taxation 4 47.9 {30.2)
Loss for the year {154.9) (311 2)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2016
Year YeaFﬂ
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figuzes in § milions Note 2016 2015
Lass for the year {154.9) {311 2}
Other comprehensive income / {Joss):
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal gains recognised 20 0.9 0.6
0.9 06
{tems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Reclassification of foreign exchange on iquidation or disposal of overseas {32.3) 2.2
subsidianes
Tax income f (loss) on exchange difference on the translation of foregn 3.5 (5 8)
operations
Exchange diference on the transtation of foreign operations 12 118
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (net of tax) (26.7) 89
Total comprehensive loss for the year (181 6} (302.3)
Attributable to:
- Qwners of the parent {181 8) (302 3)
The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an inlegral part of these consolidated finanoal staiements
13

S



Document émis électroniquement

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Consollidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2016

ali figures i § mifllans Noie 2018 2015
Non-current assets
Goodwiil 6 1,587.6 16141
Other intangible assets 7 7714 2 Rb- R
Property, plant and equipment 8 29.8 28.7
inveslments 2] 2.7 23
Deferred tax assets 10 84,0 96
Derrvative financtal instruments 11 6.1 82
Trade and other recewvables 12 417 31.6
2,523.3 268135
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 12 386.2 3358
Derivalive financial instruments 11 8.5 185
Current tax asset 3.4 3.4
Restricted cash 22 0.9 09
Cash and cash equivalents 22 41.7 403
440.7 398.6
Total assets 2,964.0 3,012 1
Equity and liabllities
Shars capital 13 - -
Share premium 13 104 10.4
Other reserves 14 (1,212.8) (1,031 2
Total equity (1,202.4) {1,020.8
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 7.3 88
Borrowings 16 1,813.0 1.803.7
Preferred Equity Certificates 17 1,761.7 1,564.8
Cernvative financial instruments 11 18 11
Deferred tax habiibies 10 119.1 148.4
Provisions 18 3.1 4.0
Deferred income 19 18.1 15.6
Retirement benefil obligations 20 6.2 67
3,734.3 35531
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 147.3 182.6
Derivative finencial instruments 11 4.9 4.0
Current tax liabiities 48 4 523
Provisions 18 57 28
Deferred income 18 228.8 238 1
435.1 479.8
Total equity and liabilities 2,964.0 30121

The notes an pages 17 to 59 ara an integrai part of thase consolidated finanoial statements.

The financial statements on pages 13 to 59 were approved by the Board of Managers on
and signed on its behalf by

Elvin Montes 14

2] nager
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Consoclidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 May 2016

Share Share Qther Total
all figures in § mitlions capital premium reserves equity
Balance at 1 June 2015 - 0.4 (1,631.2) (1,020.3)
Loss for the year - - {154.9) (1549}
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - {26.7) (26.7)
Tota! comprehensive loss for the year - - {181 6) {181.6)
Balance at 21 May 20156 . 10.4  (1,212.8) (1,202.4)
Balance at 1 June 2014 - 104 {728 9) (718.5)
Loss for the year - - (3112} (311.2)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - B9 B9
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (302.3)  (302.3)
Balance a1 31 May 2015 - 104 {1,031 2) (1,0208)

The notes on pages 17 to 58 are an integral par of these consolidated financial statements

15
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Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2016

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
alt figures in § millions Nole 2016 2015
Operating activities
Net cash flow generated from operations 21 305.8 2017
Interest paid {(177.3) (145 1)
Interest recefved 0.3 -
Net taxation paid {54.0} {72.5)
Net cash flow generated from operating activitias 74.8 741
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 - {24.9)
Expenditure on developed software 7 (47.2) (34.2)
Reduction in restncted cash 22 - 035
Purchase of third panty software 7 {1.5) (4.4)
Purchase of property, plant and equpment 8 {11.6} {6 5}
Net cash flow used in investing activitres {60.3) (69 5)
Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 22 {12.8} (13.1)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (12.8) (13.1)
Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents in the year 1.7 (8 5)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 40.3 508
Differences on exchange {03 (2 0)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 41.7 40.3
The notes on pages 17 to 59 are an integral part of these conselldated financial statements
16
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.L
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The Company is a 'Societé @ Responsabiité Limitee’, domiciled in Luxembourg. The Company's country of
mcorporatien is Luxembourg and its registered address Is 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L -1273 Luxembourg.

Nature of entity operations and principal activities

The Group's prncipal achvilles are the development, management and hcensing of a vanely of software
products and soluttons to customers in the financial services indusiry

Basis of preparation

The consohidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and IFRS Interpretations
Commuitee ("IFRS IC' ) mnterpretations as adopted by the EU and in accordance with Luxembourg Jaws and
regulations,

The prepargtion of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estmates W also regquires management to exercise it5 judgement i the process of applyng the Group’s
accounting policles

Going concern

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reaspnable potential varations in trading
performance, show that the Group is expected ic operate within the level of #s current financing faciites for
the foreseeable future In making this assessment, tha Group has considered bank covenant compliance and
the ability to operate within those covenants with adequate headroom to take into account risks 1n future
expeacted cash flows

After making enquiries, the Manzagers of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended stangards adopted by the Group
The followings IFRS and IFRS IC interpretations and amendments have been adopted by the Group, but none
had any matenal impact on the Group resuits or financial position:

« Amendment to IAS 19, ‘Defined Beneft Plans' - Employee Contributions;
« Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012, and
« Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013.

New slandards, amendments and interpreiations not yef effective

The following new standards, interpretations, iImprovements and amendments 1o exsting standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounhing periods beginning on or after 1 June 2016 or later
periods. The Group has decided to not early adopt these:

« IFR5 9 Financialinstruments (no! yet endorsed by the EUY;

« Amendments o IFRS 10 'Consoldated financial statemenis® and 1AS 28 'tnvestments in associales
and joint ventures’ on Investment antihes and applying the consolidation exceptions (effective from 1
Juna 20186},

«  Amendmants to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statemenis® and IAS 28 ‘tnvestmants in assocrates
and Jjoint ventures” (not yet endorsed by the EU),

+ Amendment lo IFRS 11, ‘Join! arrangemenis’ on acquisiton of an interast in a joint operation
{effective from 1 June 2016);

« Amendment lo |AS 18, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ relating to depreclation and amendment to IAS
38,Intangibfe assets’, on amortisation (effective from 1 June 2016),

17
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financiat statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

= Amendment lo IAS 27, '‘Separale financia) stalements on equily methods’ (effective from 1 June
201863,

= Annual improvements {2014) (effective from 1 June 2016);

¢ Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Prasentation of financial statements’ disclosure initiative {effective from 1 June
2018);

+ Amendments to IAS 12, ‘lncome taxes’ on Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrezlised lossas
{not yet endorsed by the EU), and

» Amendments to IAS 7, "Stalement of cash flows on disclosure intiative* {not yel endorsed by the EU)

The Group has undertaken an initial review of the impact of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments and has concluded that they are unlikely to significantly impact the Group's rgsults or financial
position

On 28 May 2014, the international Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") issued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers' The slandard 15 expected to become effective for the Group’s accounting penod
beginning an 1 June 2018, subject to endorsement by the EU The Group is analysing the potential impact of
the standard on its consohidated financlal slatements

In January 2016, IASB published JFRS 16 Leases (not yet endorsed by the EU). The standard is expected to
become effective for the Group’s accountng pericd beginning on 1 June 2019 (with earfler adopbion permitted
if IFRS 15, "Revenue fror Contracts with Customers’, 1s also applied} The Group s analysing the polgntial
impact of the standard on #ts conscelidated financial stalements

A summary of the Group™s accounting policies 1s given below.
Accounting convention

The consolidated financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain tems which aré measured at fair value, as disclosed in the accounting policies below These
accounting policies have been consistently applied to al! years presented, unless othenwise stated

Basls of consolidation

The Group's financral slatements consclidate the financial statemenis of Misys Newco 2 § 3 rl. and its
subsidlary undertakings. On acquisition, the assets, llablives and contingen! habilites of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition

Subsidiaries are all entities (including siructured entities} ovar which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group Is exposed lo, or has nghis to, variable retums from its invoivement with the
enbty and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the enlity

Subsidrary undertakings acquired dunng a year are included in the financial statements from the date at which
control passes to the Group. Subsidiary undertakings disposed of are included In the financlal statemenis up to
the date at which control passes from the Group. Accordingly, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated stalement of comprehensive income and the consohdated staterment of cash flows nclude the
resulls and cash flows for the period of control

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised geins and losses on transactions between Group
compantes are efiminated.

18
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financiat statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Revenue recognition

Revenue reprasents the fair value of consideration recewved or recevable from customers for services
provided by the Group, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. Ravenug 15 recognised when a
legal nght to consideration exists and can be reliably measured, delivery to a customer has occurred with no
sigruficant vendor obligations remaning and where the collection of the resulting recevable is considered
probable.

Where these clrcumstances exist but no invoice to the customer has been raised, under the terms of the
conlracts, revenue s recognised but the comesponding receivable 15 shown as accrued income in the
consolidated statemenl of financtal position.

The Group generates revenue as follows

» Licence fees,

» Maintenance fees;

= Professional Services; and
= Subscriptions

Revenue 15 recognised in accordance with 1AS 18 - 'Revenue’. In determining the amount of revenue to be
recognised, management exercise judgement, and also adopt estmates in reaching certain conclusions,
Management considers guidance from software industry common prachice in forming iis estimates

Licence fees

The Group grants its customers kcences to use Its softiwara. This ravenue can relate to (&) Initlal Licence Fee
{"ILF™), where a fee relates to the nght to use a software product, ncluding significant upgrades pertaining to
cusiomers purchasing new modules or user rights: and (b) Roadmap Accelerator ("RA™), where a fee is
payable for a significant vanation of an existing product

Where a iicence 1s not subject to material moddfication or customisation certain criteria must be met before
rovenue is recognised-

«  Arrangement existence 1s evidenced,

Software has passed miemal quality checks and is deemad generally available;

Detivery to the customer has occurred;

Risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the Group te the customer,

Revenue, and associated costs, can be measured reliably and are not subject to further adjustment;
and

s Collection from lhe customer s deemed prebable

In instances wherg significant vendor obligations exist, revenue recognition is deferred until the obligation has
been satisfied No revenue is recognised for multiple deliveries or multiple element products if an element
remains undelivered and is essential wo the functionality of the elements already delivered

ILF on heavily customised software, together with associated PS ravenue, are {reated as a single deliverable
and recognised on a percentage of completion basis over the period from commencement of pedformance to
cuslomer accepiance.

Matgnance fess

Maintenance of soflware 1s often included in licence agreements The pricing 15 usually based on a percenlage
of the ILF, which is common practice in the industry. The Mamlenance fee provides customers with nghts to
unspecified product upgrades, enhancements and help desk atcess during a defined suppont period. This
revenue Is recognisad rateably over the term of the contract
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Professional Services

Revenue Is generated from training, consulting and ymplementation serices These services are refiected in
separaie contracts to licence contracts and can be either on a time and materiais or fixed-price basis A
percentage of completion approach is adopted to account for fixed-price contracts, which is in accordance with
the rules applicable to long-term corniract revenue racognmiion in IAS 11 - Construction Contracts’, This
involves a comparison of costs incumred to date with total expected costs of the contract. Losses on contracls
are recognised at the point a loss 18 foreseen by reference to estimated costs of completion

Subscnplions
In addltion to the revenus streams ghove, the Group earns ofher revenues as follows.

« Hosting revenue is generated by way of an additional subscnption fee payabte to the Group to provide
a software hosting service. Fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract;

= Cloud revenue 15 generated whereby the customer pays a subscription fee to cover the software,
maintenance and hosting service Fees are recognised on a straightine basis over the term of the
contract, and

a Leasing revenue Is generated by way of granting customers hcence access, and providing
maintenance supporl. Fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lerm of the contract

Multiple element arrangements

The Group often enters Into transactions with customers that include multiple elements such as software
Iicence, maintenance and professional services revenues. The revenues from these arrangements are
generally accounted for separately. The factors considered in determining whether the revenue should bhe
accounted for separately include the nature of the services. the existence of the fair value for the separable
slemants, the ttming of payments and the acceptance cnieria on the abiity to realise the software ficence fee.

Revenue from multiple element arrangements Is allocated to the different elements based on their farr value.
Fair value for profassional services Is determined by market pricing for equivalent performance obligaton sold
separately or the "cost plus reasonable margin™ methodology when market data does nol exist.

When revenue is objectively determined for all undelivered elements with the exception of one delivered
element, the residual method is used to aliocate revenue to the delivered element. Revenue for delivered
elements is recognised when the revenue recognition criteria descnbed above are met and revenue is free
from any future uncentainties or adjustments attributable lo the undelivered elements from which a portion of
the fees have been allocated. Revenue for any undelivered elements 1s deferred and recognised whan the
product is delivered or over the period in which the service 1s performed

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes coverng the majority of ts employees.
The costs of these pension schemes are charged to the consofidated Income staterent as incurred. In
addition, the Group has a closed-funded defined benefit penslon scheme n the UK, as well as a number of
other smaller defined benefit arrangements outside the UK.

The remaming actve members of the clpsed UK defined benefit scheme now contnbute to a defined
contribution section of the scheme and do not accrue further benefits under the defined benefit scheme Full
independant actuarlat valuations of the defined benefit scheme are camed out on a regular basis and updated
al each reporting date The assefs of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

Fension scheme assels are measured at fair valus. Pension scheme lisbifites are measured using a projected
unit method and discounted at the current rate of return an a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency fo the liabiity. The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it Is recoverable) or deflcit is
recognised in full on the consolidated statement of financial position. Any current or past service cost and
administration expenses are recognised in the consolidataed income statement as are the net Inlerest on the
schemes" Iisbilittes
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Misys Newco 2 S.a r.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes n actuanal assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive income as they anse.

t.eases

Leases in which substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as gperating leases Payments made under operating leases such as rentals, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-ine basis over the period of the lease, taking nto account the benefit of any
rent-free perod or other Incentives

Leases of properly, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership ere classified as finance leases Properly, plant and equipment held under finance leases is
capitalised in the consofidated statemenl of financial position at the lower of cost or present valug of the
mirmmum lease payments and s deprectated over its useful ife The capral elements of future obligatons
under feases are included as liabiities in the consolidaled statement of financial position

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of return on the remaining balance of the liabHity

Taxation

Taxaton compnses the amount chargeable on the profils for the year, together with deferred taxation
Deferred taxation 1s recognised, using the liabilty methed, in respect of all temporary differences ansing
between the tax basis of assets and habikbies and thew carrying amouni in the financial statemants.

Deferred {ax assets are racognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that there will be sufficient faxable
profits from which the undertying temporary differences can be ofisel, or where there are deferred lax liabdities
against which the assets ¢an be recovered

Deferred lax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expecled to apply i the penods in
which the related deferred tax asset is reaiised, or the deferred tax liability 15 settled based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively snacted at the reporting date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporfing date and is reduced or Increased
according 1o the level of probable future profits considersd available Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed al each reporting date and are recogrised lo the extent that it 15 probable that future profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Currenl and deferred lax 15 recogmised 1 the consolidaied income statement except when the tax relates 1o
ems charged or credded directly 1o the statement of comprehensive income or directly in aguty, \n which
case tha tax 1s also recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

ttems included in the finanuial statements of Group entilies are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment m which each entity operates, known as the functional currency The consohidated
financial statements are presented in US Dcllers as this 1s considered to be the currency of the primary
economic environment of the Group

Foregn currency transactions are translated into the functione! currency of the subsidiary using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Forgign exchange
gains and losses resuling from the seltlement of such fransactions, and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monstary asseis and habilitles denominated in foreign cumencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within 'Operating expenses ’

Goodwili and mtangible assats recognised on the acquisition of enliies whose funchonal currency 15 pot US
Dollar 1s treated as an asset of that entity and transtated st the closing rate.
21
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l
Notes to the consoclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2016

The Group hedges its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks using derivatives and foraign currency
borrowings Details of the accounting policies in respect of these llems are glven i the dernivahve financial
Instruments section.

Transiation of Group companies

Financial statements of subsidiaries whose functionat currency 1s nol the US Dollar are translated into US
Doliar at the exchange rates prevailing a1 the end of the reporling peariod for itams in the statement of financlal
position, angd at average exchange rates for consolidated income statement iteams.

All eflects of exchange rate adjustmanis are recognised in the consolidated income statement, with the
excephon of exchange rale adjustments of investments in subsidiaries arising from.

+ the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ net assets at the beginning of the year to the exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period;

« the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ statement of comprehensive income from average exchange
ratas to the exchange rates at the end of the reporting penod; and

« the translation of non-current intra-Group balances that are considered to be an additon to net
investments in subsldiaries

These specific exchange rate adjustments are racognised in other comprehensive income.

If the subsidiary undertaking Is subsequently sold or closed, cumulative gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are recycled to the consolidated income statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal. If a non-current intra-Group balance is seltied or altered to a pont it 1s no longer considered part of
the net investment in a subsidiary undertakung, any related foreign exchange gans or losses which had
previcusly been recorded to the statement of other comprehensive income are recycled fo the consolidated
income statement as pant of operating expenses.

Busliness combinations

The Group uses the acquisition methed of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s the fair value of the assets transferred, the hablliies assumed
and the equily intarests 1ssued by the Group The consideration transferred includes the faw value of any asset
or liability resulting from & contingent consideration arrangsment. Acquisition-relatad costs are expensed as
incurred Identifiable assets acquired as weil as habililes and contingent liabihlies assumed in a business
comblnation are measured inbslly at their fair values at the acquisition date

Cn acquisition, specific inlangible assets are identfied and recognised separately from goodwill and then
amortised over their astimated useful lives. These include such items as brand nhames, customer relationships
and camplate technology, to which value is first attributed at the time of acquisition The capitalisation of these
assets and related amerbsation charges are based on judgemenis about the value and economic life of such
items These economic Iives for intangible assets are estimated at between three and fifleen years

The excess of purchase consideration and the fair value of separable assets and habilites acquired is
allocated to goodwill and recognised as an intangible ssset Goodwill is not amortised but Is reviewed for
impairment annually, and whenever there 15 a polential indicator of impairment Any imparment is recognised
wnmediately In the consolidated income statement and 15 not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of & previously acquired subsidiary, the atiributable amount of goodwill is Included i the
determination of the gamn or loss on disposal

Transaction costs
Acqulsition-related cosls are expensed as Incurred once any raelated contingencies have been rasolved.
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Other intangible assets and research and development expenditure

Research expenditure 1s expensed in the period in which it 15 incurred  Expenditure on devetoped software Is
capiiahised when the Group is able to demonstrate all of the following. the technical feasibiity of the resulting
assei, the abilily and intenlion to complete the development and use or sell it, how the asset will generate
probable future economic benefils, and, the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attnbutable to the asset
during its development. Capitalised expenditure on internally developed software is amortised over its useful
econormuc life 10 line with expected future economic benefits, once the related software product is available for
use

Developrment costs which do not meet these critena are recognised i the consclidated income statement as
incurred and are nol subsequently capitalised.

Development costs that are directly atiributable to the dasign and testing of ideniiftable and unique third party
software producls controllsd by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following critena are
met:

It 1s technically feasible 1o complete the software product so that it will be available for use,
Management intends to complete tha software product and use or sall if;

There 15 an ability to use or sell the software product;

It ean be demonstrated how the software praduct wilt generate probable fulure economic benafits;
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available, and

»  The expendilure attnbutable to the sofiware product during its development can be reliably measured

Drrectly attributable costs that are capiialised as part of the software product inciude the software development
employee costs and an approprate portion of relevant overheads Other development expendiures that do not
meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred Developmant costs previously recogrused as an
axpense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software devetopment cosis recognised as assels are amortised over ther estimated useful lives,
which 1s between three and seven years Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred

Intangible assels purchased separately, such as software licences that do not form an infegral part of related
hardware, are capilalised at cos! and amorttsed over their useful economic hives,

intangible assels acquired through a busiess combinabon are nitlally measured al fair value and ameortised
on a systematic basls that reflects the pettern of benefits expected aver their useful economic lives. If the
pattern of future benefils cannol be determinad reliably, the intangible assels are amartsed on a straight-line
basis The amorlisation paried is reviewed annually.

Eslimated useful hves by major class of assels are as follows,

Complete technology 3-7 years
Customer relationships 4 - 15 years
Other acquired intangibles 2-15 years
Intemally developed software 3-5vyears
Third party software 3-7 years

Property, plant and equipmeni

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original
purchase price of the assel and the cost attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as o write off the cost, less estimated
residual value of each asset, over its expectsd useful hife
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The residual values and usefu) economuc lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually. Tho
useful hves by major class of asset applied from the date of purchase are.

Buildings 20 - 30 years
Leasehold improvements 5 - 15 years or the penod of the lease if shorter
Computer and other equipment 4 - 15 years

impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciahon or amorhisalion are reviewed for impairment whanever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverablie and annually in the fourth
quarter

Goodwill ang developed software not yet brought into use are reviewed for impairment annually. For the
purpose of impalrment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which geodwil 15 allocated and
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs expected to benefit from the synergles of the combination
CGUs to which goodwiti has been allocated are tested for impaimment annually, or more frequently when there
Is an indication that the unit may be impaired [f the recoverable amount of the CGU 15 less than the carrying
amount of the umt, the imparment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unil, and then lo the other assels of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the cerrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Prior impairments of assets (other than goodwil) are reviewed for possible reversal
annually

An impawrment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recaverable amount 1s the higher of an asset s fair vaiue less costs to sall and Hs vajue in use

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included i the consolidated income statement in the
year the asset 1s de-recognised.

Financial assefs

Financial assets are classified in the following categorss “at fair value through profit or loss’, “loans and
receivables’, and ‘available for sale’

‘Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss® are financial assets held for trading or where designated
as such on onginal recognition Derlvalives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedges. Gains and losses arsing from changes in far value of “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss' are ncluded n the consolidated imcome statement in the period in which they arise
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently held at fair value.

-Loans and receivables® are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an aclive market and are carried at amortised cost.

Available for sate* financial assets are measured al fair value. Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in
equity except for impairment losses, interest and dividends ansing from those assets which are recognised in
the consohdated income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents meiude cash held at bank and In hand together with shori-term highly fiquid
investments with an original maturily of less than three manths that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and subjsct to an insignificant change In value

Restricted cash

Restncled cash is disclosed separately on the face of the consoldated statement of financal position and

denoted as restncted when it s not under the exclusive control of the Group
24
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised inlially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the
effechive interest method, {ess provision for impatrment

Where thare is objective evidence lhat there Is an impairment loss, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present vailue of the estimated Tuture cash flows discounted st
the effective interest rate The amount of loss 15 recognised m the consofidated income slatement within
operating expensaes The carrying amount of a recervable s reduced by appropriate sfiowances for estmated
irrecoverable amounts through the use of an allowance account for trade receivables. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are wniten oft when there 1s no expectation of further recovery Subsequent recoveries of
amounis previously written off are credited aganst operating expenses i the consohdated income statement

investments

Equity investments are classified as 'fair value through profit or lass'. Gains and {osses arising from changes in
fair value are included in the consolidatad incoma statement m the pariod in which they anse.

Financial kabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabililles and eqQuity instruments are c¢lassified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangaments entered into. An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its habilities

Trade payables

Trade payables are recogmsed intially at far value and subsequantly measured at amorbsed cost using the
effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past
events, and it 1s probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obhgation and this amount
is capabie of being reliably estimated. If such an obhgabton is not capable of being reliably estimated, no
provision 1s recognised and the item 1s disclosed as a contingent liability where matenal

Onerous proparty contracts

Provision for onerous leaseé commitments on property contracts 1s made when a property 1§ no longer used by
the Group, and Is based on an estimate of the net unavoidabie lease and other payments in respect of these
properties, including dilapidalion costs  These compnse rental and other properly costs payable, plus any
termination costs, less any mcome expecied 1o be derived from the properties being sublet. The provisions are
discounted at an appropriate rate to take into account the effect of the time value of money.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of term loans, overdrafls and other short term facilities, and are initially recognised at farr
value less directly attnbutable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rale method. The diferance between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemphion value is recognised In the consohdated mcome statement, within finance costs, over the pericd of
the borrowings Borrowings are classified as cumrent liabilties unless the Group has an unconditional right {o
defar selllement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporng date
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Preferred Equity Certificates

The Group has addmonat financing in the form of PECs issued to the immediate parent company, Misys
Newco S & r|. The PECs are repayable in cash within a perlod of up to 49 years from inception and have a
contractual requirement to accrue and pay mterest, and accordingly have been classified as a hability.

Denvative financial instruments

Derlvative financial instruments are intially recognised at fair value on the dete a derivative 1s entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value The method of recogmising the resufing gain or loss depends on
whether the derivalive is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the stem being hedged
Changes in the fair value of dervative financial Instruments, where they are not designated as hedging
nstruments, are recognised In the consolidated Income statement because the requirements that permi
hedge accounting in certain circumstances were not sahsfied.

Certain forecasl non-US Dollar cash flows of the Group 1 key currencies are hedged with forward currency
contracts. Hedge accounting Is not applied and the gans and tosses are recorded in the conschdaled income
statement in operating expenses

Certain financial assets and Habihhes which are denominated in currencies other than those of the funchonal
currencies of the entibes concemed, may also be hedged using forward currency contracts. Gains and losses
on these contracts are recarded in operating expenses logether with offsefting gains and losses on the
underlying ttems

Embedded derivalivaes

Certain long-term softwara licensing contracts are priced In currencies which are not the functional curencies
of the entities entering nto the contracts or are not common contracting cumencies in the iocahon in which the
transaction takes place Such contracts are considered o contain an embedded foreign currency derivatve
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporting date

Gains or losses on embedded denvatives are charged or ¢redited to the consolidated income statement. The
contracis are generally of up 1o 10 years duration and this is therefore the period over which the assets and
fiabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are expected to crystalise

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classdied as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributeble to the 1ssue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown sn eqully as a deduction, net of lax, from proceeds.

Government grants

Govermnment grants are not recognised until these is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions atlaching to them and the grants will be received The effect of grants, which include certain
incentives structured as R&D credis, i1s to reduce the value of the asset of expenss

Govarnment grants whose primary condiion is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire

non-current assets are disclosed as a liability in the consolidated statement of financial postion and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rationa! basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Critical accounting astimates and judgements
In making esttmates and assumphons, actual outcomes could differ from those assumptions and estimates
The cntical judgements that have been made in amving at the amounts recognised in the Group s financial

statements, and the key sources of estimation uncartainly thal have a significant nsk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying values of assets and habilities within the next financial year are discussed below
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Revenue recognition

The recognition of ILF revenue s dependent upon fair value allocation, separablity of components,
coltectabliity and there being no significant vendor obhigations cutslanding Management exercises judgemsent
in assessing whether such obligations are significant and, if negcessary, the value of the revenue (o be
deferred. Such revenue is recognised on signing only for products which are judged to be in a state fit for
general avaliability and ready to be shipped, to contain ali planned components and lo have compieted quality
testing

The revenue and profil of fixed-price Professiona! Services contracts is recognised on a percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably. Management exercises
Judgement un identfying onerous senice contracts and determining whether a contract’s outcome can be
eshmated religbly Management also makes estimates in the calculation of future contract costs, far values of
contracts, the value of discounts given, the value of upgrade clauses n contracts which are used in
determining the value of amounts recoverable on contracts, and timing of revenue recognition Estimates are
continualty revised based on changes in the facls relaling to each contract.

Imparment of goodwiif and intangible assels

Goodwiil and other mtangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment  An imparment review requires an
estimate to be made of the value in use’ of the ‘fair value less costs to sell’, 2s appropnalte. The value n use
calcuiation includes esttmatas about the future financlal performance of the cash generating umts, ncluding
management’s estimates of long-term operating marging and long-term growth rates In the current period,
management has assessed the recoverable amount of the cash generating umits based on thair values m use
and have 'denlified an imparment in relation to the carnyng valus of goodwill allocated to the Fusioninvest
CGU. On an aggregated basis, the Group has a sigruficant surplus on the carrying value of its CGUs. A
reasonably possible change In lhe assumptions used has been considered and s unlikely to resuit in any
additional imparment.

Capitalisation of development costs
Expenditure on developed software is capialised when the Group is able to demonstrate all of the following.
the techmical feasibility of the resulting asset; the ability and intention to complete the development and use or
sell ii; how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits, and the abiity to measure reliably the
expandilure attributable to ths asset during its development. Management astimatas the future sales and long-
term operating margins of the asset.

Onerous property contracts

Property provisions requie an esbmate lo be made of the nat present value of the fulure costs of vacant and
sublet properbes. The calculabon inctudes estimates of future cost involved, including management’s
estimates of the long term letting potential of the properties

Taxahon

A good tax control fremework is a standard global requirement for the Group to base the multiple tax filings it is
required to make to authonties globally Management use this documented process to review key judgements
and rsk areas to determing the financal staternent impact from those filings with particular areas of focus on
future ncome flows, the achviies being undertaken n the Group's entites compared to their financial
statement resulis and the mpact of changes to the tax reguiatory landscape with new tax laws baing
ntroduced. The recognition of deferred tax assets requires an evaluation of the extent to which It is probable
that future profits will allow the deferred tax assel to be recovered. Tax losses m Luxembourg have been
recogmsed in fult whera they can be ofiset following the assessmant of fulure trading profitatility at an entity
tevel

Tax estmales and judgements are regularly reassessed and changes in the expected financial statermnent
impact accounted for 1n the perdod in which the reassessment 15 made
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Provision for the impairment of Irade receivables and accrued income

Provision for the impairment of trade recewablss and accrued Income reguwes an estimate for the
recoverability of the outslanding recervables and accrued income keeping i view various implamentation
challenges, disputes with customer, customars experiencing financial difficulty end receivables which have
become significantly aged Management's estimates mclude reasonable resolutlon of these matters along with
customer financial standing to ensure that the trade receivable will be collected.

Pansions

The present value of the pension obligations depands on a number of faclors that are delerminad on an
actuaral basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determuing the net cost (income} for
pension include the discount ralg. Any changes in thess assumplions will impact the carnpng amount of
pension obligations.

Research and development credis
The Group annually files claims for R&D credits in multiple Junsdictions, and management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount relies upon procedures in place to support the assessment and documented processas

and contrgis 10 support these claims
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1. Revenue

Revenue by activily is as foliows:

Year Year

ended ended

3t May 31 May

all figures in § mithons 2016 2015
Licence fees 2531 2054
Maintenance fees 458.5 474 .5
Professional Services 154.4 164.4
Subscniptions 34.2 36.2
900.2 880.5

The Group s exempt trom IFRS 8, "Operating Segments®, and accordingly 13 not required to present

segmental information
2. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are camprised of the following:

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures in § mitions Note 2016 2015
Acquisition and integration costs 0.8 11
Restructunng related charges 14.7 224
Goodwill imparrment 6 26.7 600
Amortisation of other Intangible assets 7 195.8 2102
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 10.2 9.8

Capitalised software development costs 7 {47.2) {34.2)
Capilalised software deveiapment costs written off 7 - 33
Investor managernent feas 25 2.7 14

Realised trading foreign axchange loss / {gain) 0.1 {1.2)
Net other foreign axchange (gam) / lass 19 9.4
Raclassification of foreign exchange on liguidation or (32.3) 29

disposal of overseas subsidaries i i

Gain on forward currency conirects 11 (o 4) {37 3)

Gain on embedded denvatives 11 (1.8) (7.9)
Employee costs below  367.8 3632
Other operaling expenses below  206.1 2218
745.1 824 2
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Employee costs comprise of,
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figuras in $ mihone 2016 2015
Wages, salanes and benefits including redundancy costs 317.9 307.7
Social security costs 35.3 Jas
Pension costs
Defined contribution plans 131 15.8
Defined benefit plans 1.5 0.9
367.8 3632

Remuneration of Managers and key management personnel 15 disclosed in note 25 The
number of paople employed by the Group dunng the year was 4,720 (2015 4,635)

Other operating expenses include’

average monthly

Year Year

ended anded

31 May 31 May

all Ngures in § milllons 2016 2015
Sales commussions and sales related bonus 34.2 291
Thurd party royalty fees 14.1 17.2
Agency fees 44 41
Subcontractor costs 35.5 375
Direct sates costs 1.7 17
Markating expenses g.1 9.9
Travel expenses 333 318
People related expenses 5.9 6.3
Cccupancy cosls 27.8 327
Information systems costs 30.0 309
Legal and professicnal costs 10.6 114
Other costs 04 92
208.1 221.8

During the year, the Group obtamed the following services from the Company's suditors and ¢

herr associates:

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

ull figures in 5 millions 2016 } 2015

Feas payable to Company's audiors and their associatas for the audit of the 0.7 07
consolidated financial statemants

Fees payable to Company's auditors and their associates for the audit of the 0.4 0.8

Company's subsigaries

1.4 15

Tax services 1.8 0.7

1.9 2.2
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3. Net finance costs

Year Yeat
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures n $ mithons Note 2016 2015
Interest expense
Borrowings {141 4) {144 5}
PECs 17 (196.9) {174 4)
Accretion of discount on provisions 18 {0.1) (0.2}
Amortisation of financing facility costs {18 1} (16 8)
Net financing charge relating to pensions (0.1} (02)
Faw vatue losses on investments 9 - (0 3}
Other finance costs {2.2} 17
Finance costs (358 8) {338 1)
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 0.3 -
Fair value gains on investments 9 0.2 -
Accretion of discount on trade and other recevables 0.4 0.8
Finance income 0.9 08
Net finance costs {357.9) (337 3)
4. Taxation
Taxation on ordinary activilies
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
ak figures in § millions Note 2016 2015
Current taxation
Comorakion tax on losses for the year {34.9) {502)
Adjustments in respect of prior yeat {0.7) (5.5}
Irrecoverable withholding taxes {16.7) (12 1)
Currant taxation {52.3) {67.8}
Deferred taxahon 10 100.2 37.6
Tax credit / {charge) 47.9 {30 2)
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The difference between actual tax income computed using a weighted average rate and the tex computed an
the Group's 108 can be explained as follows

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
2016 2015
Loss befere taxation ($m} {202.8) | (281.0)
Tax credit / {charge) {($m) 47.9 (30.2)
Tax as a parcentage of loss befora tax 23.6%| (10.1)%
Weighted average tax rate on tha loss before tax 14.8% 15 2%
Tax seffects of
Pemanent differences 0.)% (29)%
Interest expense not deductible for tax purposes (137)% (88)%
Re-measurernent of deferred tax due to changes wi tax rates 09% 0.1%
Credit / (charge) from changes to the recogmbion of deferred tax assets 32.5% (9.5)%
Adjustments In respect of prior year current tax {0.3)% {2.0)%
Prior year agjustments for deferred tax (2.3)% 15%
Irrecoverable withholding tax (8.2)% {4.3)%
Tax credit / {charge) 23.6% (10 )%

The weighlad average iax rate is calculated using the underying statutory tax rates in the location where the
profits arise  Deferrad tax movements are described in nole 10,

A tax credit of $3 5m (2015 charge of $5 8m) related to currency translation differences has been recognised
N rgserves.

5. Business combinations

Acquisthon of CCS

On 8 August, 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of CCS for a
total consideration of $26 6m (324.9m, nat of cash acquired} CCS Is a software business based in the US
which provides a loan griginaton product for the banking sector

The value of the assets and liablliies acquired n the purchase of CCS and the associated fair value
adjustments related to those assets are as follows:

Fair value Fair value at
all figusres in § millions Book value adustments 8 Augusl 2014
Intangible assets - 98 98
Property, plant and equipment 0.2 - 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - 1.7
Trade and other receivables 1.8 - 1.8
Agccrued income - a.1 a.1
Trade and other payables {0.2) - (02)
Accruals (0 5) - (0.5)
Deferred Income {1.2) (2.4) {3.6)
Net assets acquired 1.8 7.5 8.3
Goodwill 17.3
Cash consideration 26.6
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An analysis of enterprise value of CCS is as shown below,

8 August
all figures in 3 mullxons 2014 |
Consideration paid in cash 2686
Cash acquired (N
Enterprise value of CCS 24.9

Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of CCS s pancipally attnibulable to future profits from new customers in new
markels and regions, {hrough cross-seliing apportunibies and the assembled workforce. Costs a2ssocated with
the acquisttion of CCS of $0 8m (2015: $1 Om) are included in operating expenses in {he consolideted income
stalement

Revenve and profit of CCS were not matenal to the Group’s financlal performance 1n 2015, The revenues and
profit that CCS would have contnbuted had it been conschdated from 1 June 2014 would not have been
material to the Group

6 Goodwill

31 May 31 May
ah figures i § millkons 2016 2015
Cost and net book value at 1 June 1,614.4 16863
Differences on exchange 0.2 {(28.5)
Acquisition af CCS (nole 5) - 17.3
Imparrment charge {26.7) {60.0}
Cost and net hook vatue at 31 May 1,587.6 1,614.1

Goodwill impairment testing

Gooedwill acquired through business combinatons has been allocated for the purposes of impavment testing 1o
CGUs. The Group conducts annual impairment testing on the carrylng value of goodwill, which is based on the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwlil has been allocated.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined by way of value in use {*VIU') caiculallons The
determination of whether or not goodwill has been mpaired requires an estimate to be made of the VIU of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allgcated.

The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flows of each CGU, based on the approved budget for the year ending
31 May 2017, and medium-term plans for the following four years which are consistent with the recent financial
performance of the relevant CGU. Thereafter, a long term growth rate of 2% (2015. 2%) has been used.

The table below shows the alfocation of the carrying value of goodwill as at the reporling penod by CGU-

all fiqures in § milligos 2016 2015
FusionCaptal 655.8 655 4
Fusioninvest 0.7 117 4
FusionBankingCare 419.1 4191
FustonRisk 30.0 300
FusionBankingTransachon 219.5 2195
FusionBankingLending 172.7 172.7
Total 1,587.6 1,614.1
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Key assumptions

The key assumptlons in the VIU calculations are discount rate applied, operating margin and the long-term
growth rate of net operating cash flows.

Discount rale
Discounl rates used are pre-tax and reftect specific risks relating 1o the relevant CGU or group of CGUs The
pre-tax discount rates applied to CGUs were as follows:

2016 2015
FusionCapital 16.2% 15 8%
Fustontnvest 13.8% 13 9%
FusionBankingCore 14.8% 15.0%
FusionRisk 16.1% 18 7%
FusionBankingTransaction 15.5%, 14 9%
FusionBanking Lending 15.2% | __ 15.0% |

Operating margin
Management determined budgeted operating margin based on prior performance and expeactation of markel
development

Long-term growth rale

Long-term growth rates of net operating cash flows are assumed equat te the fong-term growth rate in the
gross domestc product of the country in which the CGU"s operations are undertaken, and were 2% (2015
2%) for pertods beyond the first fiva years.

Summary of results
The impairment reviews indicated significant headroom on an aggregated basis in comparison to the lotal
carrying value of the combined CGUSs

For the MisysFusioninvest CGU, the recoverable amount was less than its carrying value and an impairment
charge of $26 7m was recognised against the camylng value of its geodwill in 2016. The main dnver for the
impairment was lower revenue growth experienced In 2016 n this product group, and the lower revenue
outlook for the forecast period

In the year ended 37 May 2015 the recoverable amount of MisysFusionRisk CGU was {ess than ils carrying
valug and an impairment charge of $60 Om was recogrused agamnst the carrying value of its goodwall The maln
driver for the impairment was the revenue and operating margin detengration m 2015 expenenced in this
product group, and the lower revenue outlook for the forecast period

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

As part of the ViU testing the Managaers consider the impact that a range of scenarios could have on the key
assumptions within the ViU calculation.

Discount rate

The Group bases its estmate for the long-term pre-fax discount rate on its weighted average cost of capital
("WACC") using long-termn market datz and industry dala te derive the appropriate nputs to the calculation.
The mManagers consider that 2 1.5% change in the gbsolute discount rate is the maximum change thal should
be considared as reasonably possible as this represents an 11% to 12% increase in the WACC
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Operaiing margin

The Managers consider that @ reduction of 5% in the absolute vatue of long-term cperating margins across all
CGUs would be the limit of what could be considered to be reasonably possible on (he basis that the Group’s
cost base s flexible and could quickly respond to market changes. The Group is spread across a range of
geographies and has a farge recurnng malinienance revenue stream which help to insulate # from more
significant changes

Long-term growth rate

The Group uses a long-term growih rate that is the same as the long-term growth rate of gross domestic
product (GDP) of the territones in which the CGU is based. Glven these are long-term rates, the Managers
consider a change of 1% in the absolute value of the long-term growth rate to be the hinit of what s reasonably
possible,

Surnmary of sensitivily analysis

Sensitivity analyses have been gerformed around the base case assumplions with the conclusion that no
reasonably possible changes in key assumplions would ¢ause the recoverable amount 10 be less than the
carrying amount in any CGU.

7. Other intangibls assets

Other Total
Complete Customer acquired acquired Daveloped Third party

all ligures in $ millons technoiogy relalionships intangibles intangibles  sofiware  software  Tolal

Cost

At 1 June 2015 704 9 548 ¢ 1584 14113 949 20.5 1,526.7
Differences on exchange 01 - - 0.1 02 {1.2) {0 9)
Additions - - - - 472 1.5 48.7

At 31 May 2016 705.0 548.0 158.4 14114 142 3 208 1,574.5

Accumulated

amortisation

At 7 June 2015 (400 5) {144.0) (32.1) {576.6} (21 8) {9.5) (607.9}
Differences on exchange - - - - 06 0.6
Amortisation charges

{nole 2) (114 4} {46.4) (11 2) {172.0) (19 3) {4.5) (195.8)
At 31 May 2016 {514.9) {190 4) (43.3) {748.6} {41.1) {13.4) (803.1)
Net book value

At 31 Niay 2016 180.1 3578 1151 §62.8 101.2 74 1114
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Other Total

Complete  Customer acqured acquired Developed Third party
all figures in $ mdflons technolagy relationships intangibles intangibles  soflware  software  Total
Cost
At 1 Jdune 2014 7005 547.7 157 6 1,405 8 701 184 1,494.3
Differences on exchange {2 0} {2.1) (02) (4.3) 61) (2.3) (12.7)
On acquisition of CCS
(note 5) G4 24 10 9.8 . - 9.8
Additions - - - - 342 4.4 KI s
Whiten off - - - - (3.3} - {(33)
At 31 May 20145 704 9 548 0 158.4 14113 84.9 205 15267
Accumulated
amortisgtion
At 1 June 2014 {266.6) (97.7) {(210) (3853) (80) {7.6) (400.8)
Differences on exchange 0.5 0.1 - 0.6 13 1.3 3z
Amorlisation charges
(note 2} (134.4) (46.4) {111y (191 9} (15 1} {(32) (2102
At 31 May 2015 {400.5) {144 0) {321) (5766} {21 B) (9.5) (607.9
Net book value
At 31 May 2015 304 4 404 0 126 3 834.7 73.1 110 918.8

Complete technology, customer refationships and other acquired intangibles had a weighted average
remaining life of 21 months (2015 32 months), 100 manths {2015. 112 months) and 131 menths (2015: 143

months) respectively at 31 May 2016.

8. Property, plant and equipment

Bullding and  Computer
ieasehold  and other

ail figures in § mutans improvements _equipment Total
Cost
At 1 June 2015 21.2 314 526
Differences on exchange {03) (1.1) (t.4)
Additions 54 g2 11.6
Disposals - (09) (0.9}
At 3t May 2016 26.3 35.6 61.9
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 June 2015 (72) {16.7) {23.9)
Differences on exchange 0z 09 1.9
Depreciation charges {note 2) {36) (6 6) (10.2)
Disposals - 09 0.8
At 31 May 2016 {10.6) {21.5) (32.1
Net book value at 31 May 2016 1§57 14.1 29.8
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Buikdingand  Computer
leasehold and other

2l figures i1 § miltions improvements  equipment Totzl

Cost

At 1 June 2014 237 209 536

Differences on exchange 7 (27} (4.4)
On acquisition of CCS (note 5) - 0.2 0.2

Additions 0.8 57 6.5

Disposals {16) (.7 (33)
At 31 May 20156 21.2 N4 52.6

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 June 2014 (64) (12 4) (18 8)
Differences on exchange 0.5 09 14

Depreciation charges (note 2) (29) (6.9) (9 8)
Disposals 1.6 17 33

At 31 May 2015 (7 2) (16 7) {23 9)
Net book value at 31 May 2015 14.0 14.7 287

9. Investments

all figures in § mions 2016 2015 '
Cpening balance 2.5 2.8

Farr valug movements 9.2 (0 3)
Clesing balance 2.7 25

The Group's investments compnse investments in US and European Technology Funds and marketabls
secunties, which are classifiad as "fair value through profit or loss”. Fair vatue gains and losses are recognised
within finance costs The investments are denominated in US Bollar and Euro and Is non-intarest beanng

10. Deferred taxation

Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary deferred tax
all figures in § milions Losses differences liability Total
At 1 June 2015 9.6 {7.4) {141.0} {138.8)
Oifferences on exchange - 03 (0.9) -
Credited / {charged) lo the conschdated
income statement (note 4} 69.3 (1.1} 301 98.3
impact of change in tax rales taken to the
consolidated income statemant {note 4) - - 19 19
Credit related to components of other
comprehensive income - 3.5 - 3.5
Al 31 May 2016 78.9 {4.5) (109.5) {35.1)
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Goodwill
and
Gther acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary  deferred tax
all fiquses m 5 milions Losses _differences hability Total
At 1 June 2014 13.8 {4 6) (179.2) (170 0}
Differences on exchange - 01} {0 5) (0.6)
Credited {chargsd) to the consolidated
income sfatement (note 4} 4 2) 29 387 ar4
Impact of change in tax raies taken to the
consohdated income statement (note 4) - 0z - 0.2
Charge relatad to components of other
comprehensiva income - {5.8) - {5.8)
At 31 May 2015 9.6 {74 {141.0) (138.8}

Certain deferred tax assels and liabilties have been offset The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset)

all figures In'$ 31 May 31 May
millions 2016 2015
Goodwill Goodwit)
Other and Othar and
temporary  acquired temporary  acquired
Losses differences intangibles Total Losses differencas intangibles Total
Deferred tax
assels 78.9 5.1 - 84.0 a6 - - 9.6
Deferrad tax
habilties - (8.6) (109.5} (119.1) - (7.4) {141.0} (1484)
As shown above 789 {4.5) (109.5} (351) a6 (7 4) {141.0) (138.8)

Included within the deferred tax liability of $35 1m (2015: $148 4m) 15 $109.5m (2015 $141.0m) arising from
acquired intangibles and goodwill This rapresents the net future tax liabilibes arlsing from the underlying
goodwill and acquired intangibles. The deferred tax habihty will reverse by $21 5m (2015: $31 Om) within one
year Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there wilt be sufficient future
prefits in the respective tax jurisdiction to ulilise the assals

In March 2016 the UK Budget announced a reducton in the corporate tax rate to 17% from 1 Aprit 2020 from
the previously enacted 18% rate This has not been substantively enacted at the reporiing gate and its effect
has not been included in these financia statements. The overall effect of that change, if it had applied &t the
reporting dale would be to reduce the deferred tax liability by $1.2m and increase the tax credit for the period
by $1.2m.

There continued to he significant international focus on tax reform during 2015/186, ncluding the Orgamisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development’s (*OECD™) Base Erosion and Profit Shifting { ‘BEPS °) project to
address musmaitches in international rules and European Commission initiatives. The Group will continue to
monitor developments and assess the potential impact for the Group of thase and any further Intbiatives.

The Group has a number of defarred tax assets that are not recognised as thew utilisation is not deemed to be
probable due lo insufficient future profits expected to anse in country or because there are legal restnictions on
their use which prevant the Group begin able to access them. The components of the unrecognised assets,
slated gross, are UK capital losses of $323.4m (2015. $328 7m), Luxembourg corporate tax losses $234.5m
(2015. §357 7m), UK corporate tex losses and other tax deductions not recognised of $550.2m (2015
$402.8m) and tax losses in other junsdictrons of $5 1m {2015: $26 1m).
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The tota! of these when muttiplied by the respective country tax rate gives an unrecognised deferred tax asset
of 3226 7m (2015 $254 7m).

11. Derivative financlal instruments
All dervalive financlal Instruments are measured at their fair value and are calculated by reference to the net

present value of future cash flows, based on exchange rates and nterest rates quoted on international
financial markets, at the reporling date See note 26 for adddional disclosure.

31 May 31 May
e e o 2018 2015
ali figures in § mions Assets Liabitities Assels Liabilities
Forward foreign currency contracts 7.6 {6.2) 20.8 {4 0)
Embedded denvatives 7.0 {0.5) 5.9 {1.1
14.6 (67) 26.7 {51)
Analysed as follows
Current 8.5 {4.9) 185 (4 0}
Non-current 61 {1.8} 8.2 {11
146 6.7) 267 {(51)

Forward currency contracts used to economically hedge cash flow risks

The aggregate national amountis of the cutstanding forward forewgn currency contracts at 31 May 2016 were,

31 May 31 May
all figures 1 § millions 2016 2015
Euro 248.2 152.2
Pound Stering 92.0 930
Indian Rupee 47.8 461
Philippine Peso 426 457
Romanian Leu 276 -
Auslralian Dollar 17.8 169
476.0 3539

Selected expected future non-US Dollar key currency cash flows of the Group are hedged with forward
currgncy contracts. Hedge accounting is not apphed as the technical requirements of IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments’ are not met. Gains and losses are recorded n the consolidated income staiement within
operating expenses

During the year a $04m gam {2015 $37 3m gain) was recognised through operating expenses in the
consolidated income staiement in relation to forward currency contracts

Embedded derivatives

Certain long-term software licensing contracts are priced in currencies which are not the functional cumrencies
of the entities entering info the contracts, or are not common contracting currencies in the location in which the
transacton takes place. Such contrects are considered to contain an embedded foreign currency derivative
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporiing date, except where
the currency of the contract is recognised as a common means of exchange in the country concemed Gans
or losses on these derivatives are charged or credited to the consolidated income statement. The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years duration and this is therefore the period over which the assets and habilities
recognised In the consolidated statement of financlal position are expecied to crystalise.

During the year, a $1.8m gain (2015 $7.9m galn) was recognised in operaling expenses in the consolidated
income statement n retation to embedded dervatives
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12 Trade and other receivables

31 May 31 May
all figures n $ millions 2016 2015
Trade receivables 250.9 208 4
Less: provision for impairment of irade recevables (8.2) {5.5)
Net trade receivables 242.7 2029
Research and devetopment ¢redits 45 1.7
Other taxatton and socral security 4,4 38
Deposits 20 §7
Other receivables 115 a.7
Prepayments 26.8 206
Accrued income 94.3 926
Current trade and other recelvables 3862 3358
Research and deveslopment credils 17.6 16 6
Deposits 5.7 11
Prepayments - 1.1
Accrusd Incoms 18.4 128
MNon-current trade and other recevables 41.7 316
Total trade and other receivables 427 9 367.4

The provision for impaired trade receivables relates to recelvables from customers in financial difficuity,

customer acceptance issues and cancelted contracts

The accrued income balance is stated net of a provision of $10.1m (31 May 2015- $8.3m) for items whare
future biikngs have become uncertain due to specific circumslances with identified customers

As at 31 May 20186, tradae receivables of $100.3m (2015: $102 1m) were past due but not impawed These
relate to a number of customers for whom there 15 no recent history of defsult and where commercial
discussions Jead management to conclude that it remains likely that the customer will pay without concessions
from the Group. There 15 no significant concsentration of outstanding customer receivables which is considered

a heightened nsk factor by management.

The ageing analysis of net trade receivables is as follows.

31 May 31 May

alf fgures In $ mitfions 2016 2015
0-30 days 142 4 100 8
30-60 days 17.5 24.0
60-90 days 18.2 137
90-120 days 111 153
120-180 days 20.5 a3z
Over 180 days 330 159
242.7 202.9

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the camying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.
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Movements m the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

&l flgures in § milons 2016 2015
Opening balance {5 5) {(51)
Provislon for impairment of receivables (5.9 (7.8)
Receivables written off dunng the year as uncollectibte 3.1 30
Unused amounts reversed - 38
Differences on exchange 0.1 086
Closing batance {8.2) {55)

13. Share capital and share premium

Aflotted, fully paid Share Share
share capital capital premium
Number of Sheres 3 mullions $ muilons
At 1 June 2015 and 31 May 2016 20,550 - 10.4

The authonsed share capital at 31 May 2016 consisted of 20,550 ordinary shares with a nominal value of $1
each (2015' 20,550 ordinary shares with 8 nominal valug of $1 each).

14, Other reserves

Accumulated Transiation

ail figures in $ millens losses reserve Total
At 1 June 2014 {691 5) (37 4) {728 9)
Other comprehensive (loss) f income for the year {311 2} 6.1 {305 1)
Retlassification of foreign exchange on hquidation or
disposal of overseas subsidianes - 22 22
Actuarlal gains 08 - 0.6
At 31 May 2015 {1,002.1) {28.1)  (1.031 2)
Other comprehensive (loss) f income for the year {154.9) 47 {150.2)
Reclassification of foreign exchange on liguidation or
disposal of oversesas subsidianes - (32.3) {32.3)
Actuanal gains 09 - 0.9
At 31 May 2016 (1,156.1) {567) (1,212,8) |
15 Trade and other payabies

31 May 31 May
all figures 1n § milians 2016 2015
Trade payables 53 83
Other taxation and social security 14.2 23.5
Other payables 46 84
Accrued expenses 123.2 142 4
Current trade and olher payabies 147.3 182 6
Non-current accrued expenses 7.3 88
Total trade and other payables 154.6 191.4
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Accrued expenses compnss,

31 May 31 May
All figures In § milions 2016 2015
Third party royalties and agency fees 17.7 17.4
Staff related costs {including sales commissions and bonuses) 79.1 555
Interest expense 10.7 46 6
Rent expense 10.5 13.0
Other operating cosis 12.5 18.7
Total accrued expenses 130.5 151 2

16. Borrowings

Borrowings consists of two main categones of external debt, bemg term loans which are governed by specific
agreements between the Group and a consortium of tenders as identified n the following breskdown, and
overdrafts and other short term faciities which were not drawn down at 31 May 2016 (2015 ni)

Term loans

31 May 31 May
all figures in $ miions 2018 2015
Term loans 12.8 128
Capitalised arrangement fees (12.8) (12 8)
Borrowings — current - -
Term loans 4,B47.6 1,857 5
Capitafised arrangement fees {34.8) (53 8)
Borrowings ~ non-current 1,813.0 1,803.7
Total term loans 1,813.0 1,803.7
Capitalised arrangement fees reclassified to other raceivables {8.4) (5.3)}
Bank loans (Note 22) 1,800.6 1,798.4

First Lien credit agreement:

» A $1,029.8m (2015 $,040.5m) term loan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carries interest
at London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") + 4% (May 2015 LIBOR + 4%) Prnnoipal repayments of
$2.7m are made every three months,

« A €184.4m (2015. €185 3m) lerm {oan, maturng on 12 December 2018. The term loan carries interest al
LIBOR + 4 25% (May 2015: LIBOR + 4.25%) Principal repayments of €0 3m are made every three
months; and

« A $100m (2015 $100m} Revolving Credit Facility CRCF™), maturing on 12 June 2017. The credit faciily
was enutilised al 31 May 2016 {May 2015: unutihsed} although the Group drew on the facility at various
times during the year Repayments of all drawn amounts are made within three months of drawdown and
are available for redrawing untit maturity

Second Lien gredit agreement

- A $625m (2015 $625m} term loan maturing on 12 June 2019 The term loan was fully drawn on 31 May
2016 and 31 May 2015 and carries inlerest at 12.0% (May 2015: 12.0%). No pnncipal repayments are due
during the term of the lean,
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The Group 15 subject 1o certaln finance covenanis under the credit agreements. These specify & maximum
ratio of net borrowings to operating proft, before depreciation, amortisation and exceptional or nen-recurring
items, deducting capiialised research and development costs These covenants have not been breached
during the year Substantially all of the assels of the Group are pledged as secunty under the credi
agreements.

No additional fees were capitalised dunng the year ended 31 May 2016 The unamortised amounts remaining
in the consohdated statement of financial posibion al 31 May 2046 amounted to $53 8m, of which $6.4m
related to the current portion which was reclassified to other receivables as it exceeded the current portion of
loans (May 2015 $71 9m, of which $5 3m was reclassified) Amorlisation expense for the year of $18 1m
{2015. $16.8m)}is included in finance costs In fhe consolidated income statement

The falr values are based on future expected cash flows associated with borrowings are shown in note 26

Overdrafts and other short term facililies

The Group currently has access 1o two short-term uncommitted borrowing facilities orowvided by commercial
banks. The faciliies have a total availlability of $48 Om and may be drawn as short-term loans or ublised as
overdrafl facilites on related bank accounts At 31 May 2016, no amounts were drawn against the facilites
(May 2015. $nul} Borrowings under the facilities are secured by participation in the secunty amangements of
the First Lien credit agreement and are subject to annual renewal.

17. Preferred Equity Certificates

In May 2012, the Group issued $1,257.1m as a senes of PECs, each with a par value of $1, to its immadiate
parent company. Misys Newco 5.4 rl. The PECs have a term of 49 years from the date of issuanca (effective
date) but may be retired earlier at any time by the Group or upon hquidation of the Company. The effective
date, interest rate and outstanding balances for each PEC series are as follows

ail figures in 5 milions

PEC Effective Interest 31 May 31 May
Series date 2016 20156
A 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded monthly 30.8 272
B 4-May-12 12 50%. compounded annually 327 290
c 4-May-12 12.50%, compounded annually 176.5 156 6
D 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 2725 241.8
E 30-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 1,238.7 1,097.7
F 30-May-12 0.00% 3.0 3.0
G 4-May-12 0 00% 7.5 7.5
Total 1,761.7 1,564.8

interest of $196 9m accrued dunng the year (2015 $174 am offset against & related party receivavle from
Vigta Equily Parners of $1.2m rasulting in $173 2m capitalised to the PEC balance on 31 May 2015)
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18. Provisions

all figures in § milions Property Other Total

At 1 June 2015 6.5 03 6.8

Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement:

- Additronal provisions 28 28 56

- Relgase of unused amounts {10} - (1.0
Accretion of discount 0.1 - 01

Ltulisation of provisions (2.7} - {2.7)
At 31 May 2016 57 3.1 8.8

Analysis of total prowision.

Current 26 31 57

Non-current 31 - 3.1

Total provisions 57 31 88

alk figures in § mifions pfOle’ly Cther TFotal

At 1 June 2014 71 08 7.8

Charged / (credited) to consofidated ncome slatement;

- Additional provisions 27 - 2.7

- Releasae of unused amounts (02) (0.2} {0.4)
Acgration of discount 0.2 - 02

Utilisation of provisions {2.0) (0.2) (2.2)
Differences on exchange (1.3} (0.1) {14)
At 31 May 2015 6.5 03 68

Analysis of total provision-

Current 25 03 28

Non—current 40 - 4.0

Total provisions 6.5 03 68

Properly provisions

The property provisions comprise the net present value of the estmated future costs of vacant. sublet and
occupied properties of the Group after taking into account ditapidation obhgations in the lease The provision
relating 1o vacant and sublet properties is axpected 1o be ulilised on average over the next five years.
Provisions released dunng the year relate to dilapidation provisions which are no longer required as those
properiias have been surrendered

Other provisions
Other provisions relate to obligatons following the acquistion of third party software, and open bligation
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18. Deferred income

31 May 31 May
all figures in $ miflions 2016 2015
Current

Maintenance fees 216.6 2200
Other revenue 12.2 181
2288 2381

Non-current
Maintenance fees 46 33
Qther revenue 14.5 123
191 156

Deferred mainignance fees represent amounts inwoiced in advance for contracts which provide lechmical
support and trouble-shooting assistance in addiion to upgrades and enhancements to the Group's software
products and hardware maintenance Mamntenance fess are recognised as revenue ratably as the services are
performed over the period of the contract.

Other revenue represents amounts invoiced pnmarily in respect of Professional Servigces for which the revenue
recognition criteria have yet to be satisfied.

20. Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribufion schemes

The GGroup operates a number of defined contnbulion pension schames covening the majority of its employees.
The cost of these pensicn schemes was $13 1m {2015. $15.8m) and was charged {0 the consohdated income
statement as incurred and included within employee costs There were no outstanding or prepaid contnbutions
al either the baginning or the end of the financial year

Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates various defined benefit schemas across the world. The most sigmficant schems 1s in the
UK and the disclosures in this note relate to that scheme fn terms of the non-UK schemes, these are
summansed below.

31 May 31 May
all figures m § mithons 2016 2015
Philippines funded scheme
Scheme assets 53 47
Schemae llabilibes {6.2) {6 2)
Net liability (0.9) (1.5)
Unfunded schemes:
United Arab Emirates (2.3) (2.3}
India (2.1) {18)
Indonesia (0.7) (07
USA (0.2) {04).
Total penslon lfabilities for non-UK schemes (6.2) (6.7)

UK Retirement Banefits Flan

In 2003/04 the actlve members of the Misys UK final salary retrement benefits plan (the “Plan”) ceased {o
accrue benefits on the basis of their final satary during the year Theraafier the benefits of the actrve members
accrue on a money purchase {defined contribution) basis.
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The Plan is a funded, defined benefit, final salary pension pfan The level of benafits pravided depends on
members' length of service and their salary at thar date of leaving the Plan, Pensions in payment receive
different levels of increases, some fixed (at 0%, 3% and 3.5% per annum) and some receving inflalionary
increases in ine with the increase in the Retall Prices Index ("RPI™) (subject to certain caps and floors). The
benefit payments are from trustee-administered funds. The amounts of contrihutions to be paid are decided
jointly by the employer and the Trustees of the Plan Assets held in trust are governed by UK regulabons and
practice. The Plan's mvestment strategy 1s decided by the Trustees, i consultation with the employer. The
board of Trusiees must be composed of representatives of the employer and plan participants in accordance
with the Pian's legal documentation

The latest full actuarial valuation of the Plan was carried out as at 31 May 2014, the assumptions of which
have been updated to 31 May 2016 by gualified Independent actuaries.

The amounts recognised n the consolidated statement of financial positon are determined as follows.

31 May 31 May
2l figures In § miliong 20186 2015
Present value of funded obligations {81.8) (83.8)
Fair value of glan assets 92.4 911
Surplus of funded plans 10.8 7.3
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Total surplus of defined benefit pension plans 10.6 7.3
Unrecognised asset due to limit in IAS 19 ‘Employee benafits’ paragraph 64 (10.6) (7.3)
Llabildy in consolidated statement of financial postion - -
The year-end assets and habilites in the Plan were.

Of which
not quoted
on active

all figures in § miions Total market
Investment fundsg 58.4 3.2 63.2%
Buy-in contract 330 33.0 35.7%
Cash and other 1.0 1.0 1.1%
Total market value of assels 924 71.2 100.0%
Actuarial value of ligbibties {81 8)
Surplus in the Plan 10.6
Unrecogmiged asset due to kmit in 1AS 19 "Employee bunelils’ {10.6}
paragraph 64

Net pension liabifity at 31 May 2016 -

The Plan does not invest in the Group’s own transferable (inanaial instruments.
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Of which
not quoted

on active
it figuras in § milttons Total market
Investment funds 56.2 365 61 7%
Buy-in contract 336 33.6 36 9%
Cash angd other 13 13 14%
Total market value of assets 811 714 100 0%
Actuana! value of liabilities {83.8}
Surplus in the Plan 73
Unrecogmsed asset due to limit in JAS 18 “‘Employee benefits’ {73
paragraph 64

Net pension liability at 31 May 2015 -

The Trustee of the Plan hought a bulk annutty policy from Legal & General Assurance (Pensions
Management) Limited in respect of the Plan's pensioners and thelr dependants as at 14 August 2012. An
estmate of the value of the buy-In contract 1s included in the asset value

The market value of assets 1s considered lo be maleriaity the same as the fair value.

Movemeni i the Plan assets and obhgatons dunng the year

Fair value
Present value of plan
all figures in $ millons of obilgation assets Total
Al 1 June 2015 {83.8) 91.14 7.3
Interest {expense) / income (2.7) 2.7 -
{86 5) 938 7.3
Remeasurements.
Retum on plan on assets excluding amounts mchuded in
interast expense - 51 5.1
Gan from change in demographic assumptions - .
Gain from changs in financral assumptions {(2.7) - 2.1
Exparience losses 1.0 - 1.0
(17) 5.1 34
Exchange diffecences 33 (3.4) {0.1)
Payments from plans:
Benefit payments 31 {3.1) -
At 31 May 2016 (81.8) 924 10.6

The actuanal gain racogrised in the Group's other comprehensive income s $0 9m (2015, $0.6m) which
relates to non-UK schemes (2015: gain from the UK scheme of $0.8m offset by an aclual lass in the non-UK
schernes of $0 2m)

Pension costs of $14 6m (2015 $16 7m) were recognised in the Group's consohdated income statement \n
operating expenses for both defined contrbution and defined benefit plans,
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Maovement in the Plan assets and obligations dunng the prior year

Fair value
Present value of plan
ail figures in § milllons of obligation assels Total
At 1 June 2014 {86.2) 854 {0.8)
Interest (expense) f income (3.3} 3.3 -
(89.5) 88.7 {0.8)
Remeasurements.
Return on plan on asseis excluding amounts included in
interest expense - 167 16.7
Galn from change In demographic assumptions (0 5} - (0.5)
Gain from change in financial assumplions {8.2) - (9.2)
Exparience losses 14 -~ 1.4
83) 167 8.4
Exchange differences 77 (8.0} {0 3)
Raymenis from plans.
Senefit payments 6.3 {6 3) -
Al 31 May 2015 {83.8} gt 1 7.3
The principal assumptions used in the valuations of the Pian are:
2016 2015
% %
Inflation (RP1) 3.0 3.4
Inflation (CPI) 20 2.4
Rate of increase in pensions in paymenl.
Fixed 3% 3.0 3.0
Fixed 3.5% 35 s
RPI max 5% min 3% 35 3.7
RPI max 5% min 3 5% a8 38
Post 1988 Guaranteed minimum pension 18 2.1
Discount rate for plan liabilities 3.1 3.4

Assumplions regarding fulure mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
slatishcs and experdence These assumptions transtate inlo an average life expectancy in years for 8
pensioner retiring at age 60:

2016 2015

Years Years

Life expectancy for male currently aged 60 29.3 292
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 304 ap3
Life expectancy for male currently aged 40 30.8 3086
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 40 32.9 327
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The sensitivily of the defined benefit obligation te changes m the principal assumpions 1s-

Change in assumption {impact on defined

benefit obligation

{$millions)

Discount rata -0.1% {0.8)
RP! inflahion +0 1% (0.2)
Demographic change One year increase m life expectancy {1.8)

The above sensiivity analysis on the discount rate is hased on a change i an assumptan while hotding alf
other assumplions conslant. The change in RPI inflabion assumption impacts on the Consumer Pricas Index
(“CPI”} assumplion, revaluabion in deferment and pension increase assumptions. When calculating sansitivity
of the defined banehf obligation to significant actuanal assurmnptions, the same method {present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied as when calculating the penston llability recognised within the statement of financial postton.
This is consistent with sensitivities calculated in pravious periods

The Plan is exposed to a number of risks, the most significanl of which are detailed below’

Assef volatity

The fiabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yieids Uf assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The Pian holds a significant proporton of growth assets (e g.
equities, propany, absolute relurmn fund) which are expected to gutperform corporale bonds in the long-term
while prowviding volatiity and risk n the short-term The allocation to growth assets is monitored such that it 1s
suitable with the Pian's long term objectivas.

Changes in bond yrelds
A decrease in the corporate bond yields will increase the Plan's liabilibes, aithough this will be partially offset
by an Increase in the value of the Plan's bond holdings

irflation risk

The majorily of the Plan’s benefit obhigations are linked to infiation, and higher inflabion will lead to higher
lrabiliies (althowgh, in most cases, caps on the Isvel of inflahionary increases are in place to protect aganst
extreme inflation) The majority of the assels are either unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation,
meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit.

Lile expeciancy
The mayority of the Pfan s obligations are to provide bsnefits for the life of the members, so increases n life
gxpectancy will result in an increase n the liabiiities

The Plan uses the buy-in contract and habilfty matching assets (which ncludes swaps and cash funds) as

matching assets The remainder of the assels 15 used as growth assets. Funding levels are monitored on a
quarterly basis and the next tnennial vaiuation rs dus to be completed as at 31 May 2017

There are no employer contributions expected to be paid to the Plan for the year ending 31 May 2017 The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is approximately 16 years
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21. Net cash flow generated from operations

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figuras in § millons Note 2016 2015
Operating profit 1551 583
Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 1958 210.2
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment B 10.2 98
Capitalised developed software writien off 7 - 33
Goodwill )impaiment 6 267 60.0
Difierences betwaen pension charge and cash 04 05
contributions
Gains on embedded denvalives 11 {1.8) (7 9}
Unrealised foreign exchange gains {16 8) (22.3)
Movemenls in working capital
(Increase) f decrease in irade and other receivables {59.8) 10.4
Increase / {decrease) in payables and provisions 03 {(220)
Decrease in daferred income {43) (6 6)
Net cash flow ganerated from operations 305.8 201.7

22. Reconclliation of movements (n net debt

The Group defines net debi as borrowings excluding PECS, less cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash

Cash and cash

all Agures in § mikions equivalents Restricted cash Bank loans Net detit
At 1 June 2014 50.8 14 {1,843 7) (1.791 5)
Acquisitions {24.9} - - (24 9}
Cash flow 16.4 (05) 131 28.0
Non-cash movements - - {16.8) {186.8)
Differences on axchange {20) - 49.0 47.0
At 31 May 2015 403 0.8 {1,798.4) {1,757.2)
Cash flow 17 - 12.8 14.5
Non-cash movements - - {18 1) {18.1}
Differences on exchange (0 3) - {2.9) {3.2)
At 31 May 2016 41.7 0.9 (1,806.6} {1,764.0}

Restricted cash of $0 9m (2015. $0.9m) 1s not avaifable for the general use of the Group

Bank loans are inclusive of capitalised loan arrangement fees of $6.4m {2015: $5.3m) which have been
reclassiied to other receivables as described in nota 16.

23. Contingent Habilities

Contingent liabilities that are quanbfiable anse from guarantees, letters of credit and bonds thal have been
1ssued in support of tenders submitted to prospechive customers These amount 10 $0 9m {2015 $1.1m).

A contingent hability exlsts in refatlon to the Group's defined benefit scheme (note 20) as a resull of the
proposed equalisaton of Guaranteed Mimmum Pension ("GMP"}. The UK Government intends 1o implement
{egisiation which could result in an increase in the value of GMP for males This would increase the defined
benefit obligation of the Plan. At this stage ¢ Is not possible to quantfy the mmpact of this change
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The Company and fis subsidianes may be parkes 1o legal actions and claims ansing i the ordinary course of
business Whilst the outcome of current outstanding actions and claims remains uncertain, it 1s expected that
they will be reseived withoul a material impact to the Group's financial position.

The Group considers that it is remote that any matenal habiliies will anse from any other contingent liabiities
which are not identified above

24. Commitments

Commitments of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 May

2016 2015
Land and Plant and tand and Plant and
all figures in § milhons buildings equipment buildings equipment
Rental payments due within one year 280 0.3 26.6 03
Rental payments due between one anc five years 91.2 0.5 77.0 02
Rental paymenis due after five years 55.2 - 43.1 -
Tolal 174.4 0.8 1467 05

Total future sublease mcome under non-cancellable subleases s $3.5m due within one year (2015 §4 2m),
$8 7m due between one and five years (2015. $10 9m} and $3 1m due after five years (2015. §4 9m)

25. Retated party ransaclions

Farent and subsidiaries
Transactions betwean the Company and s subsidaries, which are related parties, have been elminated on
consoiidation and are naot disclosed in this note.

The $1,761 7m (2015. $1,564 8m) PECs balance and associated accrued interest is owed to Misys Newco
S ari, the immed:ate parent entity of the Group,

Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnet of the Group comprise the Managers and certain other senlor managsment.
Their remuneration is set out below in aggregate

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures in § miflions 2016 2015
Short-term employment banefits 5.4 8.1
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.1
Termination benefits 0.2 -
58 82

The key managemenl parsonnel of the Group were due a discrelionary compensation amount of $1.9m (2015
ni) at 31 May 2016

The Group operates a Long-Term Incentive Plan for key management personnel which has an immaterial
nominal value at 31 May 2016 (2015 immaterial).
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Other related parties
During the year ended 31 May 2016 the Group transacted with the following related parties:
Nature of During the Qutstanding
Related Party Relationship transaction year at year end
SumTotal Systems Formerly Vista Equity Purchase of
UK Limrted Partners portfolio company  sofiware 0.2 -
TIBCOQ Software Inc.  Vista Equity Partners Purchase of
portfolic company software 1.6 -
Vista Consulting Related party Management
Group L1C consulting 2.7 1.3
PeopleAdmin inc Vista Equity Partners Administrative
portfolio company services 01 -
Advanced Computer  Vista Equity Pariners Agministrative
Software and porifolic company services
Scluligns Limited 0.1 -

During the year ended 31 May 2015 the Group transacted with the following related parties’

Nature of Ouning the  Outstanding

Retated Party Refationship transaclion year at year end
SumTotal Systems Formerly Vista Equity Purchase of
UK Limited Parinars partfolic company  software 02 -
TIBCQ Software Inc. Vista Equily Partners Purchase of

portfolio company software 03 -
Vista Consulting Relsted party Management
Group LLC consulting 1.4 0.2
Aptean Corporation Vista Equity Parners Administrative

portfolio company services 0.2 01

The Group paid $0.4m of expenses on behalfl of Vista Equlty Partners {2015. $0 8m} Thers is a receivable
batance of $0.6m {2015: $0.2m) from Vista Equity Pariners at 31 May 2016 which was nol settled. In May
2015, cumulative debt of $1.2m was settled via a repayment of accrued interest on Series E PECs as 15
prescribed under the PEC agreement.

2§. Financial instruments: risk management

The Group operates a centrahsed treasury function which 15 responsible for managing the tquidity, interest
rate and foreign exchange risks associated with the Group’s actvities under policies approved by the Board,
Traasury policy 18 reviewed and approved annually by the Board and specifies the parameters within which
treasury operations must be conducted, including authorised counterpariies, instrument types, transaction
fimits and principles governing the management of liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risks

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, are cash, short term deposits, bank loans,
PECs, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
instruments Is to raise fipance for the Group's operations

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates Internatonally and is exppsed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous currency
exposures Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabifitles
and net investments in forsign oparations The Group reviews the hon-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the
Group and hedges forecast exposures which exceed the iimit specified by management using external forward
coniracts A portion of the Group's Eure denominated First Lien debt is also hedged using forward currency
conlracts at specific rates approved by the Board

The Group's net exposure to foreign currency risk is Mustrated by the sensilivity analysis in note 28
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on foatng rale ioans, overdrafts and cash held on
deposit The Group’s borrowings are a mix of floating and fixed rates with vanable interest rates set for perods
of three months or less The Group's vanable rate term loan debt references LIBOR, with a specified floor of
1% Based on vanous scenaros, the Group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk using interest rate hedging
nstruments such as caps or swaps. As at 31 May 2016 the Group heid no inlerest rate hedging mstruments
(2015 none)

The Group's net exposure o interest rate nsk is flustrated by the sensitivity analysis n nole 29.

Credit nsk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposils with banks and
financial institutions, but primarily from oulstanding trade recevables and committad transactions. The Group
has policies in place lo ensure that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credd history

Dermvatve and cash transactions are hmited to gh-quably finanoial mstiiutions. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial instituton For customer contracts, the Group and each
reporting subsidiary have specified nsk contro! and authansation procedures in place to assess the credit
quality of a customer Where there 1s no independent nsk rahng for a customer, such an assessment takes mto
account financial posthion, past expenence and other Tactors.

Tha Group has no swynificant concentrations of credil nsk, with exposures spread over a large number of
customers and counterparties.

Liquiddy nisk

The Group manages #is cash and borrowing reguirements centrally to minimise net tnterest expense within risk
parameters sot by the Board, whist ensuring that the Group has sufficient liqud resources to mest the
oparating needs of the business The long term forecast cash and borrowings profite of the Group is monitored
to ensure that adequate headroom remains under curent and projected borrowing facihties,

The table below shows the maturly analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractua! cash fiows of the
Group's non-denvative financial liabilitres.

Less than jto2 2to5 Over5 2016
ail figures ;n $ milliong 1 year years years years Total
Borrowings and associated interest 1255 149.8 1,906.2 - 2,181.6
Trade and other payables 129.8 - - - 125.8
Total cash flows — 2016 255.3 149.8 1,906.2 - 2,311.3

{ess than 1i02 2t05 Qver$ 2015
all figures o § millions 1 year yaars years years Total
Borrowings and associated interest 150 8 1502 2,052.6 - 2,353.6
Trade and other payables 155.9 - - - 155 8
Total cash flows — 2015 3067 150.2 2,0526 - 2,5095

The Group has also 1ssuad PECs with a maturity of 49 years as outhned in Note 17 Af the reporting date, the
PECs have 45 years outstanding to maturity The PECs have nol been taken into account in the above
matunity analysis of undiscounted contractual cash flows The total impact for the PECs in 45 years on an
unthscounted contraclual cash fiow basis 1s $377,251 9m (2015 $377.257 9m)

The table below analyses the Group's oufflow and inflow from derivative financia! instruments ito relevant
ragtunty groupings based on the remaining contraclual matunty period at the reporting date The amounts
disciosed i the table are the contractual undiscounted gross cash fiows
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Less than 1t02 2toS Overs 2016
all igures In § mllions 1 year years years years Tota!
Derivative financial instruments {gross seltled)

- Inflows 3765 103.2 25 18 484.0
- outfiows (373 1) (103 1) {0.2) (¢ 1) (476 5
Net cash flows - 2016 3.4 0.1 2.3 1.7 7.5

Less than 1to2 205  Overs 2015
all figures n $ milkions 1 year years Years Years Total
Derivative financial instruments {gross settled)

- inflows 267 4 105.4 19 22 376.9
- outflows (253 0) {101 6) {0 5) {02y  (366.3)
Net cash flows - 2015 14 4 38 14 24 216

Netling arranhgements of denvaive inanckal insiruments

The gross farr value of derivative financial instruments as presented in the Group consolidated statement of
financial position, together with the Group's rights to offsel associaled wilh recogrised financial assets and
recognised financial habilibes subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements Is
summarised as follpws,

May-— ) — D i M-ay
e« — 2016 2015
Gross Amount Gross Amount
all figures in § millons amount presented Net amount amount presented Nel amount |

Financial assets
Forward foreign

currency contracts 76 7.6 58 208 208 18.9

Financial liabilities

Forward foreign

currency contracts (6 2) (6.2) (44) {40) (4.0) {01
1.4 ~ 1.4 1.4 16.8 16.8 16.8

Nal amounts show the effect if all amounis were nelted off for each Individual counter party under the terms of relevant
ISDA agresments.

Capital risk

The capital structure of the Group consists of nel debt, PECS (note 17} and equity attributable to equity helders
of the Company, comprising issued capllal, reserves and retained earnings as shown in the consolidated
stalement of changes in equity and note 14 The Group manages its capital with the objective that all entitles
within the Group continue as a going concem while maintsining an efficient structure to mimmuse the cost of
capital.

The Group is subject to certain financial covenants under s loan factiites. These specify a maximum ratio of
nat debt to operating profit, before depreciation, amorisation and non-recuming items, deduchng cepltslised
tesearch and development costs, This covanant has nol been breached dunng the year

27. Financial instruments: categories

Fair value measurament hiersrchy
Fair value measurements of financial instruments {where relevant) are classifled using the following fair value
hierarchy which reflects the significance of the mputs used in making the measurements:

= Quoted prices (Unadjusted) in acbive markets for identica) assels or labiihes {Level 1),
« Input other than quoted prices inctuded within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or liabilty, elther
directly (i @ as prices) or Indirectly (i @ derved from prices) (Level 2), and
» inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observabie market data (unohservable inputs) (Level
3
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Fair value Non-

Fair value  through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
all figures m § milrons hierarchy’ P&l _receivables cost _instrument’| Current current |
At 31 May 2016
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 27 - - - - 27
Danvative financial
instrements Level 2 148 - - - 8.5 8.1
Trade and other
receivables - 4010 - 26.9 386.2 41.7
Restricted cash - 4.9 - - 0.9 -
Cash and cash
equivalents - 417 - - 41.7 -

17.3 443.6 - 26.8 437.3 505
Financial lizbilities
Derivative financial
nstruments Levai 2 (67) - - - (4.9) {1.8)
Borrowings and PECs - - {35747) - - {3,574.7)
Trade and other
payables - - {140 4} {14.2) |{147.3) (7.3)
{6.7) - {3,715.1) (14.2) {1522} (3,583.8)
Farr value Non-

Farr value through Loans & Amodised financiat Non-
ail figures in $ mihons hierarchy’ P&L receivables cost instrumentt] Current  current
Al 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Investments Leve] 2 2.5 - - - - 25
Denvative financia)
instruments Level 2 267 - - -l 185 8.2
Trade and other
receivablas - 3458 - 21.7| 335.8 316
Restricted cash - 09 - - 09 -
Cash and cash
equivalents ) 403 B o] 403 )

28.2 A87.0 - 217 3955 42.3
Financiai tanlities
Derivative financial
instruments Level 2 (5.1} - - - (4.0) (11)
Borrowings and PECs - - {3,368.5) - - (3,368.5)
Trade and other
payebles - - (167 9) (23 5} {(182.6) (B 8}
{51) - {3,536 4) {235) (186 6) (3.378.4)

'Fair value hlerarchy shows the far value measuremant calegones as descrived below,

2agsats thal do nol quanfy as a financlal msliument indude prepayments of $26.8m (2015 $21 7m) Lwabsilies that do not qualfy as
{financial instrumants are tax and other soclal secunly payments of 514 2m /2015 $23 5m).

a) Financel instrumanls in level! 1

The fair value of financial instrumants traded in active markets is based on quoled market prices at the close of
businaess on the reporbng date. A markel is regarded as aclive if quoted pnces are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, desler, broker, Industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occumming marke! transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financiat assets held by the Group 15 the current bid price These instruments are
included in fevel 1 and compnse investments in quoted markelabie secuntias.
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b) Financial instruments in lavel 2

The Ffair value of financial instruments thal are not raded «n an actve market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) 1s determuned by using valuation techniques The valuahon techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where 1t is aveulable and rely as itile as possible on enlity specific estimates |f all
significant mputs required to fair value an mstrument are observable, the instrument is inctuded n level 2.

Forward exchange rates valuation technique was used 1o value financlal mstruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents primanly comprise cash deposits angd mvestments Cash which bears intergst at
nominal rates comprises of: US Dollar of $16.1m (2015 $16.1m}, Pound Sterling of $0 Sm (2015, $3.0m),
Euro of $18m (2015. $3.0m) and other cumencies of $23.3m (2015: $18 2m). Restricted cash comprises
$0.9m (2015. 30 9m) denominated in US Doltar and $nil {2015- $nil) in other currencies

Forward foraign eéxchange coniracls
The fair value of foreign exchange derivalives was a net asset of $2.7m (2015 net asset of $16.8m)

28. FInancial instruments: fair vatues

The fair vaiues of each category of the Group's financlal instruments are approximate to their carrying values
In the Group's statement of financial position as the impact of discounting Is not significant

29, Financial instruments: sensitivity analysis

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group's pancipal foreign currency exposures are to Pound Sterding, Euro and Indian Rupee The table
below illustrates the hypothehcal sensitivity of the Group's reporied profit and equity for every 10% increase
and decrease, n refaton to the US Dollar, Euro, Pound Sterling, indran Rupee and Phikppine Peso exchange
rates at the reporting date, assuming all other vanables remamn unchanged The sensibvily rate of 10%
represents the Managers' assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable future.

Outstanding forward contracts used 10 hedge the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the Group as
described in note 28 ere included in this analysis. Itis anticipated that on maturity of the hedges an underying
future anticipated cash flow exposure will crystafise and offsel any gain or loss.

Positive figures represent an increase in operating profit’

Consolidated income statement

all igures m $ milions 2016 2015
US Dollar strengthens by 10%

Euro (10.1) (13 0)
Pound Sterhing {3.0) {2.0)
Indian Rupee 4.4 48

Philippine Peso 3.2 4.5

US Dollar weakens by 10%

Euro 101 130

Pound Sterling 3.0 20

Indian Rupse {4.4) {4.8)
Philippine Peso {(32) {4.5}

Year average exchange rates appliad in the above analysis are Eure (.90, Pound Stering 0.67, Indian Rupse
66 21 and Phifippine Peso 46 69 (2015. Euro 0 83, Pound Siering 0.63, Indian Rupee 61 91 and Philippine
Peso 44 36)
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Interest rate sensitvity analysis

The Group's vanable rate debt references LIBOR with a floor of 1% The Group is exposed to increases in
interest rates beyond this floor The tabie below #ustrates the hypothetical sensitvily of the Group's reporied
profit to a 0 5% increase in interest rates beyand the 1%, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged The
sensitivity of 0.5% represents the Managers' assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable
future Table below ilustrates the Impact on the consolidaled income statemeni for a decrease of 0 5%
ignonng the impact of the Group's vaniable rate floor of 1%

Consolidated income statement
all hgures in § mslons 2016 2015
Interest rate increase of G 5% {6.4) (6.7)
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 6.4

30. Subsidiary undertakings

The Company 1s the direct owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voting rights over all the equily
share capilal of Magic Newco 4 54 rl| which has a registered office at 287-282 route d'Arlon, L-1150,
Luxembourg.

The Company 1s the beneficial owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voting nghls over all the equity

share capilal, through subsidiary undertakings, of the below subsidiary undertakings.

Company Name City Country
Almonde Inc Wilmington United States
Finance Information et Technologie S.A.S Parls France

IND Group Holding Limited Nicoswa Cyprus

Kapiti Limnited London Uniled Kingdom
Magic Bidco Limited London United Kingdom
Magic Newco 4 S&rl Luxembourg Cty  Luxembourg
Magic Newco 5Sarl Luxembourg City  Luxembourg
Magic Newco LLC Wilmington Unnted States
MIBS Holdings Limited London Urited Kingdom
Misys Africa Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Czech s r.o. Prague Czech Republic
Misys Egypt LLC Cairo Egypt

Misys Europe S A, Luxembourg City  Luxembourg
Misys France SAS Pans France

Misys Global Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Global s.r.o Bratislava Slovakia

Misys Holdings Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Hungary Kft Miskolc Hungary

Misys lndia Holdings Limred London United Kingdom
Misys International Banking Systems {C1S) Limited tondon United Kingdom
Misys Internationsl Banking Systems A.G Zurich Switzerland
Misys International Banking Systems GmbH Frankfurt Germany

Misys International Banking Systems Inc New York United States
Misys International Banking Systems K.K. Tokyo Japan

Misys International Banking Systemns Limited Hong Kong Cry Hong Kong
Misys International Banking Systems Limited Vangauver Canada

Misys Intemational Banking Systems Limited London United Kingdom
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Company Name City Country

Misys International Banking Systems Mexico S A DE CV Mexico City Mexico

Misys Internatonal Banking Systems Pty Limited Sydney Australia

Misys international Financial Sysiems (Ply) Limited Johanneshurg South Africa

Misys Internabionial Financial Systems Pte Limited Singapore Singapore

Misys Intemational Financial Systems S.L Madrid Spain

Misys International Financial Systems SRL Bucharest Romania

Misys international Financiat Systerns Technology (Beijing) Limited  Beijing China

Misys International Systems - Informatica Unipessoat Limitada Lisbon Portugsi

Misys Inlernational Systems Limited Bangkok Thattand

Misys tnternational Systems Sdn Bhd Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Misys ireland Limited Dublin treland

Misys taly Sr | Milan ltaly

Misys Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Morocco S arl Casablanca Morocco

Misys Netherands Global B V. Amsterdam Netherlands

Misys Philipplnes Inc Makati Philippines

Misys Poland SP Z0OO Warsaw Poland

Misys Retirement Benefits Trustees Limited London United Kingdom

tisys Software Solutions (India) Private Limited Bangalore India

Misys Spain, S L Madrid Spain

Misys Trade and Risk Management India Private Limited Mumba India

MKI Australia Pty Limited Sydney Australia

PT Misys International Financial Systems Jakarta Indonesta

Sophis Brasl! Servicos De Tecnologia Lida Sao Paolo Brazit

Summit Asia Limited London United Kingdom

Troy TRM Enformasyon Ve Yazilim Limited Sirketi Istanbui Turkey

Troy TRM Lirited Riyadh Saudi Arabla

Turaz Globat S.arl Luxembourg Cty  Luxernbourg

Turaz Global Software EPE Athens Graece

Turaz Global TRM S ar.l. Luxembourg City  Luxembourg
The foliowing subsidianes were classified as “in iquidation” at 31 May 2016

Company Name City Country

ACT Overseas Limted London United Kingdom -

ACT Pension Trustees Limited London United Kingdom

ACT Sigmex Limited London United Kingdom

Almonde Limited London United Kingdom

IDOM Consutting Limited London Unied Kingdom

IND GmbH Munich Germany

IND Slovakiasro Bratsslava Slovakia

Misys Finance Limited London Unkted Kingdom

Misys Group Holdings Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Group Pension Trustees Limited London United Kingdom

Misys Internationat Banking Systems Limited Dubtin treland

Misys IQ Limited Laondon United Kingdom

Misys KBS Lwnited London United Kingdom
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Cornpany Name - City Country

Misys Nominees Ulmuted London United Kingdom
Misys Portfolio Holdings Limited Londan United Kingdom
Misys Services Limited London United Kingdom
Misys Worcester Limited London United Kingdom
PT Troy Trade and Risk Management Jakarta Indonesia
Sophis Acquisition Dubhn Irefand

Soprus Holding Cubhn {reland

Sophis UK Limited London United Kingdom
Summit Systermns Internahonal Limited London United Kingdam
Troy TRM Pty Lid Sydney Ausiralia

Turaz Glooat AS Osio Norway

Turaz Limited London Unned Kingdom

31 Ultimate parent undertaking and controiling party

The immediate parent underlaking s Misys Newco S.4 rl This company files consolidated financiaf
statements ¢ Luxembourg

Fhe party which controls the Company 1s Vista Equily Partners based in USA

32 Parent urdertaking guarantee

Certain UK and German subsidiaries in the Group have clected 10 make use of the audit exemphtion, for non-
dormant subsidiaries, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act and by virtue of saclion 264(3) HGB of the
German Commercial Code as relevant The German subsidiary hsted below has also elected to make use of
the exemplion to publish its financial stalements in the electromc federal gazette. In order to fulfil the
conditions set out in the requlations, the Company has given a statutory guarantee of all outstanding habities
to which the subsiaianes are subjeci at the end of the financial year to 31 May 2016 The companies whith
have made use of the audit exemption as lollows,

Company name Company Number Registered office

Kapfti Limited 1841697 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 68L, UK
MIBS Holdings Limited 874912 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Whsys Afnca Limited 3079792 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL., UK
Misys International Banking

Systems (CiS) Limitad 3259295 One Kingdom Sireet, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Holdings Uimited 1752099 One Kingdom Sireet, London, W2 68L, UK
Summit Asia Limited 2698761 Onse Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys intemabonal Banking Heddenchstrasse 36, 60694 Frankfurt,
Systems GmbH HRB36797 Germany

33 Events after the reporting date

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements no significant or material events affecting
tha Group have baen wentified
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